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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

  
ITEM 1. Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Allison Transmission Holdings, Inc.
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets

(unaudited, dollars in millions, except share data)
 
   September 30, 2013  December 31, 2012 
ASSETS    
Current Assets    

Cash and cash equivalents   $ 152.3   $ 80.2  
Accounts receivables — net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $0.9 and $0.9, respectively    198.7    165.0  
Inventories    165.9    157.1  
Deferred income taxes, net    56.9    55.3  
Other current assets    33.2    32.7  

    
 

   
 

Total Current Assets    607.0    490.3  
Property, plant and equipment, net    553.1    596.2  
Intangible assets, net    1,636.0    1,716.1  
Goodwill    1,941.0    1,941.0  
Deferred income taxes, net    1.1    32.3  
Other non-current assets    73.0    90.1  

    
 

   
 

TOTAL ASSETS   $ 4,811.2   $ 4,866.0  
    

 

   

 

LIABILITIES    
Current Liabilities    

Accounts payable   $ 163.9   $ 133.1  
Product warranty liability    38.6    36.2  
Current portion of long-term debt    11.4    19.5  
Deferred revenue    21.6    21.6  
Other current liabilities    162.8    167.4  

    
 

   
 

Total Current Liabilities    398.3    377.8  
Product warranty liability    53.1    73.5  
Deferred revenue    41.7    42.6  
Long-term debt    2,719.8    2,801.3  
Deferred income taxes    37.0    0.1  
Other non-current liabilities    193.5    213.8  

    
 

   
 

TOTAL LIABILITIES    3,443.4    3,509.1  
Commitments and contingencies (see NOTE N)    

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY    
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 1,880,000,000 shares authorized, 182,326,604 issued and

outstanding    1.8    1.8  
Non-voting common stock, $0.01 par value, 20,000,000 shares authorized, 1,185 issued and

outstanding    0.0    0.0  
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized, none issued and outstanding    —      —    
Treasury stock    —      (0.2) 
Paid in capital    1,611.4    1,601.5  
Accumulated deficit    (194.9)   (202.3) 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax    (50.5)   (43.9) 

    
 

   
 

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY    1,367.8    1,356.9  
    

 
   

 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY   $ 4,811.2   $ 4,866.0  
    

 

   

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Allison Transmission Holdings, Inc.
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

(unaudited, dollars in millions, except share data)
 
   Three months ended September 30,   Nine months ended September 30,  
   2013   2012   2013   2012  
Net sales   $ 466.3   $ 493.5   $ 1,435.8   $ 1,654.8  
Cost of sales    260.2    269.1    805.3    894.7  

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Gross profit    206.1    224.4    630.5    760.1  
Selling, general and administrative expenses    74.0    96.7    247.5    307.0  
Engineering — research and development    20.9    35.9    72.7    87.0  

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Operating income    111.2    91.8    310.3    366.1  
Interest income    0.2    0.1    0.6    0.7  
Interest expense    (37.5)   (40.9)   (105.1)   (116.3) 
Other expense, net    (1.5)   (1.8)   (7.2)   (55.4) 

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Income before income taxes    72.4    49.2    198.6    195.1  
Income tax (expense) benefit    (27.9)   (17.0)   (76.1)   307.9  

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Net income   $ 44.5   $ 32.2   $ 122.5   $ 503.0  
    

 
   

 
   

 
   

 

Basic earnings per share attributable to common stockholders   $ 0.24   $ 0.18   $ 0.66   $ 2.77  
    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

Diluted earnings per share attributable to common stockholders   $ 0.24   $ 0.17   $ 0.65   $ 2.70  
    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

Dividends declared per common share   $ 0.12   $ 0.06   $ 0.30   $ 0.12  
    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

Comprehensive income   $ 47.0   $ 38.6   $ 115.9   $ 508.0  
    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Allison Transmission Holdings, Inc.
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(unaudited, dollars in millions)
 
   Nine months ended September 30,  
   2013   2012  
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:    
Net income   $ 122.5   $ 503.0  
Add (deduct) items included in net income not using (providing) cash:    

Amortization of intangible assets    80.1    112.5  
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment    74.1    76.0  
Deferred income taxes    77.8    (311.8) 
Unrealized gain on derivatives    (22.2)   (17.3) 
Stock-based compensation    10.7    4.5  
Excess tax benefit from stock-based compensation    (9.3)   (1.7) 
Amortization of deferred financing costs    8.4    11.3  
Impairment loss on investment in technology-related initiatives    2.5    14.4  
Loss on intercompany foreign exchange    2.3    —    
Loss on repayments and redemptions of long-term debt    0.5    21.6  
Loss on re-measurement of employee benefit plan    —      2.3  
Other    (0.1)   0.9  

Changes in assets and liabilities:    
Accounts receivable    (33.6)   (10.3) 
Inventories    (10.0)   (31.6) 
Accounts payable    31.0    13.6  
Other assets and liabilities    (19.3)   (2.0) 

    
 

   
 

Net cash provided by operating activities    315.4    385.4  
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:    

Additions of long-lived assets    (41.2)   (93.9) 
Investments in technology-related initiatives    (6.3)   (14.4) 
Collateral for interest rate derivatives    1.3    (0.7) 
Proceeds from disposal of assets    0.4    0.5  

    
 

   
 

Net cash used for investing activities    (45.8)   (108.5) 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:    

Repurchase of common stock    (99.5)   —    
Payments on long-term debt    (89.6)   (150.5) 
Dividend payments    (55.2)   (21.8) 
Proceeds from exercise of stock options    33.5    10.1  
Excess tax benefit from stock-based compensation    9.3    1.7  
Taxes paid related to net share settlement of equity awards    (3.6)   —    
Debt financing fees    (2.6)   (18.4) 
Redemptions of long-term debt    —      (326.9) 
Payments on notes payable    —      (2.5) 

    
 

   
 

Net cash used for financing activities    (207.7)   (508.3) 
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash    10.2    (0.7) 

    
 

   
 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents    72.1    (232.1) 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period    80.2    314.0  

    
 

   
 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period   $ 152.3   $ 81.9  
    

 

   

 

Supplemental disclosures:    
Interest paid   $ 112.9   $ 120.6  
Income taxes paid   $ 3.5   $ 9.0  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Allison Transmission Holdings, Inc.
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(UNAUDITED)

NOTE A. OVERVIEW

Overview

Allison Transmission Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the “Company” or “Allison”), design and manufacture commercial and defense fully-automatic
transmissions.

The business was founded in 1915 and has been headquartered in Indianapolis, Indiana since inception. The Company has 12 different transmission
product lines. Although approximately 78% of revenues were generated in North America in 2012, the Company has a global presence by serving customers in
Europe, Asia, South America and Africa. The Company serves customers through an independent network of approximately 1,400 independent distributor and
dealer locations worldwide.

Since the introduction of the Company’s first fully-automatic transmission over 60 years ago, the Company’s products have gained acceptance in a wide
variety of applications, including on-highway trucks (distribution, refuse, construction, fire and emergency), buses (principally school, transit and hybrid-transit),
motorhomes, off-highway vehicles and equipment (principally energy, mining and construction) and defense vehicles (wheeled and tracked). The Company has
developed over 100 different product models that are used in more than 2,500 different vehicle configurations, which are compatible with more than 500
combinations of engine brands, models and ratings. The Company also sells support equipment and Allison-branded replacement parts for the Company’s
transmissions and remanufactured transmissions for use in the vehicle aftermarket.

NOTE B. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation

The condensed consolidated financial statements as of and for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles for interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly,
the condensed consolidated financial statements do not include all information and footnotes required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (“GAAP”) for complete financial statements. The information herein reflects all normal recurring material adjustments, which are, in the
opinion of management, necessary for the fair statement of the results for the periods presented. The condensed consolidated financial statements herein consist of
all wholly-owned domestic and foreign subsidiaries with all significant intercompany transactions eliminated.

These condensed consolidated financial statements present the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the Company. The condensed
consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements included in the Company’s Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2012 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) on February 28, 2013. The interim period financial results for the
three and nine month periods presented are not necessarily indicative of results to be expected for any other interim period or for the entire year.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses. Significant estimates include,
but are not limited to, allowance for doubtful accounts, sales allowances, government price adjustments, fair market values and future cash flows associated with
goodwill, indefinite life intangibles, long-lived asset impairment tests, useful lives for depreciation and amortization, warranty liability, determination of discount
and other assumptions for pension and other postretirement benefit expense, income taxes and deferred tax valuation allowances, derivative valuation, and
contingencies. The Company’s accounting policies involve the application of judgments and assumptions made by management that include inherent risks and
uncertainties. Actual results could differ materially from these estimates. Changes in estimates are recorded in results of operations in the period that the events or
circumstances giving rise to such changes occur.
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Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2013, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued authoritative accounting guidance on the presentation of an unrecognized tax
benefit when net operating loss (“NOL”) carryforwards exist. The guidance requires presentation of an unrecognized tax benefit, or a portion of an unrecognized
tax benefit, in the financial statements as a reduction to a deferred tax asset for an NOL carryforward, a similar tax loss or a tax credit carryforward. The guidance
is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2013. While the adoption of this guidance is not expected to have an effect on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements, it could affect the accounting treatment applied under these circumstances in the future.

In July 2013, the FASB issued authoritative accounting guidance on the inclusion of the Fed Funds Effective Swap Rate as a benchmark interest rate for
hedge accounting purposes. The guidance also removes the restriction on using different benchmark rates for similar hedges. The guidance became effective for
qualifying new or redesignated hedging relationships entered into on or after July 17, 2013. The adoption of this guidance did not have an effect on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements as the Company does not currently elect hedge accounting treatment on its interest rate swaps.

In March 2013, the FASB issued authoritative accounting guidance on a parent company’s accounting for the cumulative translation adjustment upon
derecognition of certain subsidiaries or groups of assets within a foreign entity or of an investment in a foreign entity. The guidance clarifies that when a parent
company ceases to have a controlling financial interest in a subsidiary or group of assets, the cumulative translation adjustment should be released into net income
only if the sale or transfer results in the complete or substantially complete liquidation of the foreign entity in which the subsidiary or group of assets had resided.
The guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2013. While the adoption of this guidance is not expected to have an effect on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements, it could affect the accounting treatment applied under these circumstances in the future.

In February 2013, the FASB issued authoritative accounting guidance on the presentation and disclosure of reclassifications out of accumulated other
comprehensive income. The guidance gives an entity the option to present significant amounts reclassified out of each component of accumulated other
comprehensive income and the income statement line items affected by the reclassification either parenthetically on the face of the financial statements or in the
footnotes to the financial statements. The guidance became effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2012. The adoption of
this guidance did not have a material effect on the Company’s condensed consolidated financial statements; however, it requires the Company to present
additional disclosures in the footnotes to the condensed consolidated financial statements when significant amounts are reclassified out of accumulated other
comprehensive income.

In January 2013, the FASB issued authoritative accounting guidance clarifying the scope of new balance sheet offsetting disclosures issued in December
2011 for derivatives, repurchase agreements and securities lending transactions that are either offset in the financial statements or subject to an enforceable master
netting arrangement or similar agreement. The guidance became effective for interim and annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013. The adoption of
this guidance did not have a material effect on the Company’s condensed consolidated financial statements.

In December 2011, the FASB issued authoritative accounting guidance on enhancing disclosures to evaluate the effect or potential effect of netting
arrangements on an entity’s financial position. The guidance requires improved information and disclosures about gross and net amounts of recognized assets and
liabilities of financial and derivative instruments that are offset in an entity’s statement of financial position. The guidance applies retrospectively for interim and
annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013. The adoption of this guidance did not have a material effect on the Company’s condensed
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTE C. INVENTORIES

Inventories consisted of the following components (dollars in millions):
 

   
September 30,
       2013           

December 31,
2012  

Purchased parts and raw materials   $ 82.5    $ 80.6  
Work in progress    8.0     7.5  
Service parts    45.6     44.5  
Finished goods    29.8     24.5  

    
 

    
 

Total inventories   $ 165.9    $ 157.1  
    

 

    

 

Inventory components shipped to third parties, principally transmission cores, parts to re-manufacturers, and parts to contract manufacturers, in which the
Company has an obligation to buyback, are included in purchased parts and raw materials, with an offsetting liability in Other current liabilities.

NOTE D. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

As of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the carrying amount of the Company’s Goodwill was $1,941.0 million. The following presents a
summary of other intangible assets (dollars in millions):
 

   
September 30,

2013    
December 31,

2012  

   
Intangible

assets, gross   
Accumulated
amortization   

Intangible
assets, net    

Intangible
assets, gross   

Accumulated
amortization   

Intangible
assets, net  

Other intangible assets:           
Trade name   $ 870.0    $ —     $ 870.0    $ 870.0    $ —     $ 870.0  
Customer relationships — defense    62.3     (23.4)   38.9     62.3     (20.8)   41.5  
Customer relationships — commercial    831.8     (361.5)   470.3     831.8     (321.2)   510.6  
Proprietary technology    476.3     (234.3)   242.0     476.3     (205.8)   270.5  
Non-compete agreement    17.3     (10.7)   6.6     17.3     (9.4)   7.9  
Patented technology — defense    28.2     (20.4)   7.8     28.2     (17.9)   10.3  
Tooling rights    4.5     (4.1)   0.4     4.5     (3.9)   0.6  
Patented technology — commercial    260.6     (260.6)   —       260.6     (255.9)   4.7  

    
 

    
 

   
 

    
 

    
 

   
 

Total   $ 2,551.0    $ (915.0)  $1,636.0    $ 2,551.0    $ (834.9)  $1,716.1  
    

 

    

 

   

 

    

 

    

 

   

 

As of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the net carrying value of the Company’s Goodwill and other intangibles was $3,577.0 million and
$3,657.1 million, respectively.

The Company performs its annual impairment review of Goodwill and trade name carrying values on October 31 of every year. Events or circumstances
that could unfavorably impact the key assumptions in the impairment test include lower net sales, the Company’s inability to execute on marketing programs
and/or delay in the introduction of new products, lower gross margins or failure to obtain forecasted cost reductions, or a higher discount rate as a result of market
conditions.

Amortization expense related to other intangible assets for the next five years and thereafter is expected to be (dollars in millions):
 
   2014    2015    2016    2017    2018    Thereafter 
Amortization expense   $98.8    $97.1    $92.4    $89.7    $87.2    $ 275.5  
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NOTE E. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In accordance with the FASB’s authoritative accounting guidance on fair value measurements, fair value is the price (exit price) that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The Company utilizes market data or
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk and the risks inherent in the inputs to the
valuation technique. These inputs can be readily observable, market corroborated, or generally unobservable. The Company principally applies the market
approach for recurring fair value measurements and utilizes the best available information that maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of
unobservable inputs. The Company is able to classify fair value balances based on the observability of those inputs. The accounting guidance establishes a fair
value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurement). The three levels of the fair value
hierarchy defined by the relevant guidance are as follows:

Level 1 — Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical assets or liabilities as of the reporting date. Active markets are those in which
transactions for the asset or liability occur in sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. Level 1 principally consists of
financial instruments such as exchange-traded derivatives, listed equities and publicly traded bonds.

Level 2 — Pricing inputs are other than quoted prices in active markets included in Level 1, which are either directly or indirectly observable as of the
reported date. Level 2 includes those financial instruments that are valued using models or other valuation methodologies. These models are principally industry
standard models that consider various assumptions, including quoted forward prices for commodities, time value, volatility factors, and current market and
contractual prices for the underlying instruments, as well as other relevant economic measures. Substantially all of these assumptions are observable in the
marketplace throughout the full term of the instrument, can be derived from observable data or are supported by observable levels at which transactions are
executed in the marketplace.

Level 3 — Pricing inputs include significant inputs that are generally less observable from objective sources. These inputs may be used with internally
developed methodologies that result in management’s best estimate of fair value. At each balance sheet date, the Company performs an analysis of all instruments
subject to authoritative accounting guidance and includes, in Level 3, all of those whose fair value is based on significant unobservable inputs. As of
September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the Company did not have any Level 3 financial assets or liabilities.

The Company’s assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value include cash and cash equivalents, available-for-sale securities, derivative instruments,
assets held in a rabbi trust and a deferred compensation obligation. The Company’s cash equivalents consist of short-term U.S. government backed securities. The
Company’s available-for-sale securities consist of ordinary shares of Torotrak plc (“Torotrak”) associated with a license and exclusivity agreement with Torotrak.
Torotrak’s listed shares are traded on the London Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol “TRK.” The Company’s derivative instruments consist of interest rate
swaps, foreign currency forward contracts and commodity swaps. The Company’s assets held in the rabbi trust consist principally of publicly available mutual
funds and target date retirement funds. The Company’s deferred compensation obligation is directly related to the fair value of assets held in the rabbi trust.

The Company’s valuation techniques used to fair value cash and cash equivalents, available-for-sale securities, assets held in the rabbi trust and the
deferred compensation obligation represent a market approach in active markets for identical assets that qualifies as Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy. The
Company’s valuation techniques used to calculate the fair value of derivative instruments represent a market approach with observable inputs that qualify as
Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

The foreign currency contracts consist of forward rate contracts which are intended to hedge exposure of transactions denominated in certain currencies and
reduce the impact of currency price volatility on the Company’s financial results. The commodity contracts consist of forward rate contracts which are intended to
hedge exposure of transactions involving purchases of component parts and energy to power our facilities, reducing the impact of commodity price volatility on
the Company’s financial results.

For the fair value measurement of foreign currency derivatives, the Company uses forward foreign exchange rates received from the issuing financial
institution. These rates are periodically corroborated by comparing to third-party broker quotes. The foreign currency hedges are accounted for within the
authoritative accounting guidance set forth on accounting for derivative instruments and hedging activities and have been recorded at fair value based upon
quoted market rates. The fair values are included in Other current and non-current assets and liabilities in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. The
Company generally does not elect to apply hedge accounting for these foreign currency contracts, and as a result, unrealized fair value adjustments and realized
gains and losses are recorded in Other expense, net in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income during the period of change.
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For the fair value measurement of commodity derivatives, the Company uses forward prices received from the issuing financial institution. These rates are
periodically corroborated by comparing to third-party broker quotes. The commodity derivatives are accounted for within the authoritative accounting guidance
set forth on accounting for derivative instruments and hedging activities and have been recorded at fair value based upon quoted market rates. The fair values are
included in Other current and non-current assets and liabilities in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. The Company has either not qualified for or not
elected hedge accounting treatment for these commodity contracts, and as a result, unrealized fair value adjustments and realized gains and losses are recorded in
Other expense, net in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income.

For the fair value measurement of interest rate derivatives, the Company uses valuations from the issuing financial institution. The Company corroborates
the valuation through the use of third-party valuation services using a standard replacement valuation model. The floating-to-fixed interest rate swaps are based
on the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) which is observable at commonly quoted intervals. The fair values are included in other current and non-
current liabilities in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. The Company has not qualified for hedge accounting treatment for the interest rate swaps and,
as a result, fair value adjustments are charged directly to Interest expense in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income.

The following table summarizes the fair value of the Company’s financial assets and (liabilities) as of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012 (dollars
in millions):
 
   Fair Value Measurements Using  

   

Quoted Prices in Active
Markets for Identical

Assets (Level 1)   
Significant Other

Observable Inputs (Level 2)   TOTAL  

   
September 30,

2013   
December 31,

2012   
September 30,

2013   
December 31,

2012   
September 30,

2013   
December 31,

2012  
Cash and cash equivalents   $ 152.3   $ 80.2   $ —     $ —     $ 152.3   $ 80.2  
Available-for-sale securities    9.5    6.1    —      —      9.5    6.1  
Rabbi trust assets    1.0    0.2    —      —      1.0    0.2  
Deferred compensation obligation    (1.0)   (0.2)   —      —      (1.0)   (0.2) 
Derivative assets    —      —      0.2    0.2    0.2    0.2  
Derivative liabilities    —      —      (30.7)   (52.9)   (30.7)   (52.9) 

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Total   $ 161.8   $ 86.3   $ (30.5)  $ (52.7)  $ 131.3   $ 33.6  
    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

Of the available Cash and cash equivalents, approximately $147.3 million and $75.2 million was deposited in operating accounts while approximately $5.0
million and $5.0 million was invested in U.S. government backed securities as of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively.

NOTE F. DEBT

Long-term debt and maturities were as follows (dollars in millions):
 

   
September 30,

2013    
December 31,

2012  
Long-term debt:     
Senior Secured Credit Facility Term B-1 Loan, variable, due 2014   $ —      $ 411.4  
Senior Secured Credit Facility Term B-2 Loan, variable, due 2017    1,123.5     793.1  
Senior Secured Credit Facility Term B-3 Loan, variable, due 2019    1,136.4     1,145.0  
Senior Notes, fixed 7.125%, due 2019    471.3     471.3  

    
 

    
 

Total long-term debt    2,731.2     2,820.8  
Less: current maturities of long-term debt    11.4     19.5  

    
 

    
 

Total long-term debt less current portion   $ 2,719.8    $ 2,801.3  
    

 

    

 

As of September 30, 2013, the Company had $1,123.5 million of indebtedness associated with Allison Transmission, Inc.’s (“ATI”), the Company’s
wholly-owned subsidiary, Senior Secured Credit Facility Term B-2 Loan due 2017 (“Term B-2 Loan”) and $1,136.4 million of indebtedness associated with ATI’s
Senior Secured Credit Facility Term B-3 Loan due 2019 (“Term B-3 Loan”) (together the Term B-2 Loan, Term B-3 Loan and revolving credit facility are defined
as the “Senior Secured Credit Facility”). The Company also had indebtedness of $471.3 million of ATI’s 7.125% senior cash pay notes due May 2019 (“7.125%
Senior Notes”).

The fair value of the Company’s long-term debt obligations as of September 30, 2013 was $2,761.7 million. The fair value was based on quoted Level 1
market prices of the Company’s debt as of September 30, 2013. It is not expected that the Company would be able to repurchase a significant amount of its debt
at these levels. The difference between the fair value and carrying value of the long-term debt is driven principally by trends in the financial markets.
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Senior Secured Credit Facility

In 2007, ATI entered into a Senior Secured Credit Facility having a term loan in the amount of $3,100.0 million with a maturity date of August 2014. In
March 2012, ATI entered into an amendment with the term loan lenders under its Senior Secured Credit Facility to extend the maturity of $801.1 million in
principal amount of term loan debt from August 2014 to August 2017 and to increase the applicable margin at the Company’s option to either (a) 3.50% over the
LIBOR or (b) 2.50% over the greater of the prime lending rate provided by the British Banking Association or the federal funds effective rate published by the
Federal Reserve Bank of New York plus 0.50%. As a result of the debt modification, the Company recorded an additional $2.3 million as deferred financing fees
in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets and extended the amortization period of $5.1 million of deferred financing fees from 2014 to 2017.

In August 2012, ATI entered into an amendment with the term loan lenders under its Senior Secured Credit Facility to extend the maturity of $850.0
million of term loan debt from August 2014 to August 2019 and to increase the applicable margin at the Company’s option to either (a) 3.25% or 3.00%, subject
to the Company’s total leverage ratio, over the LIBOR (which may not be less than 1.00%) or (b) 2.25% or 2.00%, subject to the Company’s total leverage ratio,
over the greater of the prime lending rate provided by the British Banking Association or the federal funds effective rate published by the Federal Reserve Bank
of New York plus 0.5% (which may not be less than 2.00%). The amendment was treated as an extinguishment of debt under GAAP, and thus the Company
expensed $4.5 million of deferred financing fees and recorded $16.1 million of new deferred financing fees in the condensed consolidated financial statements.

In October 2012, ATI entered into an amendment with the term loan lenders under its Senior Secured Credit Facility to extend the maturity of $300.0
million of term loan debt from August 2014 to August 2019 and to increase the applicable margin at the Company’s option to either (a) 3.25% or 3.00%, subject
to the Company’s total leverage ratio, over the LIBOR (which may not be less than 1.00%) or (b) 2.25% or 2.00%, subject to the Company’s total leverage ratio,
over the greater of the prime lending rate provided by the British Banking Association or the federal funds effective rate published by the Federal Reserve Bank
of New York plus 0.50% (which may not be less than 2.00%). The amendment was treated as an extinguishment of debt under GAAP, and thus the Company
expensed $1.4 million of deferred financing fees and recorded $1.8 million of new deferred financing fees in the condensed consolidated financial statements.

In February 2013, ATI entered into an amendment with the term loan lenders under its Senior Secured Credit Facility to refinance $793.1 million of term
loan debt and decrease the applicable margin for such term loans at the Company’s option to either (a) 3.00% over the LIBOR or (b) 2.00% over the greater of the
prime lending rate provided by the British Banking Association or the federal funds effective rate published by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York plus
0.50%. In February 2013, ATI also entered into an additional amendment with the term loan lenders under its Senior Secured Credit Facility to extend the
maturity of $411.4 million of term loan debt from August 2014 to August 2017 and to increase the applicable margin at the Company’s option to either (a) 3.00%
over the LIBOR or (b) 2.00% over the greater of the prime lending rate provided by the British Banking Association or the federal funds effective rate published
by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York plus 0.50%. The February 2013 amendments were treated as a modification of debt under GAAP, and the Company
expensed $1.0 million of deferred financing fees and recorded $1.6 million of new deferred financing fees in the condensed consolidated financial statements.

In August 2013, ATI entered into an amendment with the term loan lenders under its Senior Secured Credit Facility to refinance $1,139.3 million of term
loan debt and decrease the applicable margin for such term loans at the Company’s option to either (a) 2.75% or 2.50%, subject to the Company’s total leverage
ratio, over the LIBOR (which may not be less than 1.00%) or (b) 1.75% or 1.50%, subject to the Company’s total leverage ratio, over the greater of the prime
lending rate provided by the British Banking Association or the federal funds effective rate published by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York plus 0.50%
(which may not be less than 2.00%). The amendment was treated as a modification of debt under GAAP, and thus the Company expensed $2.1 million of deferred
financing fees and recorded $1.0 million of new deferred financing fees in the condensed consolidated financial statements.

The Senior Secured Credit Facility is collateralized by a lien on substantially all assets of the Company including all of ATI’s capital stock and all of the
capital stock or other equity interest held by the Company, ATI and each of the Company’s existing and future U.S. subsidiary guarantors (subject to certain
limitations for equity interests of foreign subsidiaries and other exceptions set forth in the terms of the Senior Secured Credit Facility). Interest on the Term B-2
Loan, as of September 30, 2013, is equal to the LIBOR plus 3.00% and interest on the Term B-3 Loan, as of September 30, 2013, is equal to the LIBOR (which
may not be less than 1.00%) plus 2.75% based on the Company’s total leverage ratio. As of September 30, 2013, these rates were approximately 3.19% and
3.75% on the Term B-2 Loan and Term B-3 Loan, respectively, and the weighted average rate on the Senior Secured Credit Facility was approximately 3.47%.
The Senior Secured Credit Facility requires minimum quarterly principal payments on the Term B-2 Loan and Term B-3 Loan as well as prepayments from
certain net cash proceeds of non-ordinary course asset sales and casualty and condemnation events and from a percentage of excess cash flow, if applicable. Due
to voluntary prepayments, the Company has fulfilled all Term B-2 Loan required quarterly payments through its maturity date of 2017. The minimum required
quarterly principal payment on the Term B-3 Loan is $2.8 million and remains through its maturity date of 2019. As of September 30, 2013, there had been no
payments required for certain net cash proceeds of non-ordinary course asset sales and casualty and condemnation events. The remaining principal balance on
each loan is due upon maturity.
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In accordance with the Senior Secured Credit Facility, net cash proceeds of non-ordinary course asset sales and casualty and condemnation events will only
be required to prepay the term loan if the Company does not reinvest or commit to reinvest such net cash proceeds in assets to be used in its business or to make
certain other permitted investments within 15 months of the related transactions or events, subject to certain limitations. The Company must apply 50% of its
annual excess cash flow (as defined in the Senior Secured Credit Facility) to the prepayment of the Senior Secured Credit Facility, however this percentage
reduces to certain levels and eventually to zero upon achievement of certain total senior secured leverage ratios. For the year ended December 31, 2012, the
excess cash flow percentage was 0%, and as a result, the Company was not required to make an excess cash flow payment.

The Senior Secured Credit Facility also provides for $400.0 million in revolving credit borrowings, net of an allowance for up to $50.0 million in
outstanding letter of credit commitments. Throughout the nine months ended September 30, 2013, the Company made periodic withdrawals and payments on the
revolving credit facility as part of its debt management plans. The maximum amount outstanding at any time during the period on the revolving credit facility was
$20.0 million, and all balances were repaid within the quarter they were borrowed. As of September 30, 2013, the Company had $386.4 million available under
the revolving credit facility, net of $13.6 million in letters of credit. Revolving credit borrowings bear interest at a variable base rate plus an applicable margin
based on the Company’s total senior secured leverage ratio. As of September 30, 2013, this rate would have been between approximately 2.94% and 5.00%. In
addition, there is an annual commitment fee, based on the Company’s total senior secured leverage ratio, which as of September 30, 2013, was equal to 0.5% of
the average unused revolving credit borrowings available under the Senior Secured Credit Facility. Revolving credit borrowings are payable at the option of the
Company throughout the term of the Senior Secured Credit Facility with the balance due in August 2016.

The Senior Secured Credit Facility requires the Company to maintain a specified maximum total senior secured leverage ratio. As of September 30, 2013,
the Company was in compliance with the maximum total senior secured leverage ratio achieving a 3.48x ratio versus a 5.50x requirement threshold. Within the
terms of the Senior Secured Credit Facility, a senior secured leverage ratio above 3.50x results in a 0.5% commitment fee on the revolving credit facility and
requires excess cash flow payments on the term loans for the applicable year. A senior secured leverage ratio at or below 3.50x would result in a 12.5 basis point
reduction to the revolving credit facility commitment fee and elimination of excess cash flow payments. Additionally, the Company achieved a total leverage ratio
of 4.26x as of September 30, 2013. Within the terms of the Senior Secured Credit Facility, a total leverage ratio at or below 3.25x would result in a 25 basis point
reduction to the applicable margin on the Term B-3 Loan. This reduction would remain in effect as long as the Company achieved a total leverage ratio at or
below 3.25x.

In addition, the Senior Secured Credit Facility, among other things, includes customary restrictions (subject to certain exceptions) on the Company’s ability
to incur certain indebtedness, grant certain liens, make certain investments or declare or pay certain dividends. As of September 30, 2013, the Company is in
compliance with all covenants under the Senior Secured Credit Facility.

7.125% Senior Notes

In May 2011, the Company completed an offering of $500.0 million of the 7.125% Senior Notes. The Company may from time to time seek to retire the
7.125% Senior Notes through cash purchases and/or exchanges for equity securities, in open market purchases, privately negotiated transactions, contractual
redemptions or otherwise. Such repurchases or exchanges, if any, will depend on prevailing market conditions, liquidity requirements, contractual restrictions and
other factors. The amounts involved may be material. Prior to May 15, 2015, the Company may redeem some or all of the 7.125% Senior Notes by paying the
applicable “make-whole” premium. At any time on or after May 15, 2015, the Company may redeem some or all of the 7.125% Senior Notes at specified
redemption prices in the governing indenture.

The 7.125% Senior Notes are unsecured and guaranteed by the subsidiaries that guarantee the Senior Secured Credit Facility and will be unconditionally
guaranteed, jointly and severally, by any future domestic subsidiaries that guarantee the Senior Secured Credit Facility.
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NOTE G. DERIVATIVES

The Company is exposed to certain financial risk from volatility in interest rates, foreign exchange rates and commodity prices. The risk is managed
through the use of financial derivative instruments including interest rate swaps, foreign currency forward contracts and commodity swaps. The Company’s
current derivative instruments are used strictly as an economic hedge and not for speculative purposes. As necessary, the Company adjusts the values of the
derivative instruments for counter-party or credit risk.

Interest Rate

The Company is subject to interest rate risk related to the Senior Secured Credit Facility and enters into interest rate swap contracts that are based on the
LIBOR to manage a portion of this exposure. The Company has not elected hedge accounting treatment for these derivatives, and as a result, fair value
adjustments are charged directly to Interest expense in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income. A summary of the Company’s interest
rate derivatives as of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012 follows (dollars in millions):
 

   September 30, 2013   December 31, 2012  

   
Notional
Amount    Fair Value  

Notional
Amount    Fair Value 

Interest Rate Swap D, due 2013   $ —      $ —     $ 125.0    $ (2.8) 
Interest Rate Swap E, due 2013    —       —      150.0     (2.3) 
Interest Rate Swap F, due 2013    —       —      75.0     (1.1) 
Interest Rate Swap G, due 2013    —       —      75.0     (1.2) 
Interest Rate Swap H, due 2014    350.0     (10.2)   350.0     (19.0) 
Interest Rate Swap I, due 2014    350.0     (10.3)   350.0     (19.2) 
Interest Rate Swap J, due 2014    125.0     (2.8)   125.0     (3.3) 
Interest Rate Swap K, due 2014    125.0     (2.9)   125.0     (3.4) 
Interest Rate Swap L, due 2019    75.0     (0.8)   —       —    
Interest Rate Swap M, due 2019    100.0     (1.1)   —       —    
Interest Rate Swap N, due 2019    75.0     (0.7)   —       —    
Interest Rate Swap O, due 2019    75.0     (0.2)   —       —    

    
 

    
 

   
 

    
 

  $1,275.0    $ (29.0)  $1,375.0    $ (52.3) 
    

 

    

 

   

 

    

 

In July 2013, the Company entered into two new interest rate swaps to hedge its variable interest rate exposure on the Senior Secured Credit Facility.
Interest Rate Swap L has a notional amount of $75.0 million and is effective from August 2016 to August 2019 at an all-in fixed rate of 3.44% and a LIBOR floor
of 1.00% with no independent collateral requirement. Interest Rate Swap M has a notional amount of $100.0 million and is effective from August 2016 to August
2019 at an all-in fixed rate of 3.43% and a LIBOR floor of 1.00% with no independent collateral requirement.

In September 2013, the Company entered into two new interest rate swaps to hedge its variable interest rate exposure on the Senior Secured Credit Facility.
Interest Rate Swap N has a notional amount of $75.0 million and is effective from August 2016 to August 2019 at an all-in fixed rate of 3.37% and a LIBOR floor
of 1.00% with no independent collateral requirement. Interest Rate Swap O has a notional amount of $75.0 million and is effective from August 2016 to August
2019 at an all-in fixed rate of 3.19% and a LIBOR floor of 1.00% with no independent collateral requirement.

Certain of the Company’s interest rate derivatives contain credit-risk and collateral contingent features under which downgrades in the Company’s credit
rating could require the Company to increase its collateral. Certain interest rate derivatives also contain provisions under which the Company may be required to
post additional collateral if the LIBOR interest rate curve reaches certain levels.

As of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the Company had recorded cash collateral of $1.7 million and $3.0 million, respectively, in Other
current assets in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets, as the balances are subject to frequent change. The Company has also posted $9.0 million of
collateral in the form of letters of credit.
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Currency Exchange

The Company’s business is subject to foreign exchange rate risk. As a result, the Company enters into various forward rate contracts that qualify as
derivatives under the authoritative accounting guidance to manage certain of these exposures. Forward contracts are used to hedge forecasted transactions and
known exposure of payables denominated in a foreign currency. The Company generally has not elected to apply hedge accounting under the authoritative
accounting guidance and recorded the unrealized fair value adjustments and realized gains and losses associated with these contracts in Other expense, net in the
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income during the period of change.

The following table summarizes the outstanding foreign currency forward contracts as of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012 (amounts in
millions):
 

   September 30, 2013   December 31, 2012  

   
Notional
Amount    Fair Value  

Notional
Amount    Fair Value 

Japanese Yen (JPY)   ¥550.0    $ (0.2)  ¥675.0    $ (0.2) 
      

 
     

 

    $ (0.2)    $ (0.2) 
      

 

     

 

Commodity

The Company’s business is subject to commodity price risk, principally with component suppliers. As a result, the Company entered into various
commodity swap contracts that qualified as derivatives under the authoritative accounting guidance to manage certain of these exposures. Swap contracts were
used to hedge forecasted transactions either of the commodity or of components containing the commodity. The Company has not qualified for hedge accounting
treatment for these commodity contracts, and as a result, unrealized fair value adjustments and realized gains and losses associated with these contracts were
charged directly to Other expense, net in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income during the period of change.

The following table summarizes the outstanding commodity swaps as of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012 (dollars in millions):
 
   September 30, 2013   December 31, 2012  

   
Notional
Amount    Quantity   Fair Value  

Notional
Amount    Quantity   Fair Value 

Aluminum   $ 20.5    10,075 metric tons  $ (1.2)  $ 19.4    9,050 metric tons  $ (0.1) 
Steel    N/A    N/A    —      0.2    340 metric tons    (0.1) 
Natural Gas    N/A    N/A    —      0.3    80,000 MMBtu    0.0  

        
 

       
 

      $ (1.2)      $ (0.2) 
        

 

       

 

The following tabular disclosures further describe the Company’s derivative instruments and their impact on the financial condition of the Company
(dollars in millions):
 
   September 30, 2013   December 31, 2012  
   Balance Sheet Location   Fair Value  Balance Sheet Location   Fair Value 
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments        

Foreign currency contracts   Other current assets   $ 0.0     

  

Other current
liabilities    (0.3)  

Other current
liabilities   $ (0.2) 

Commodity contracts
  

Other current and
non-current assets    0.2   

Other current and
non-current assets    0.2  

  

Other current and
non-current liabilities   (1.4)  

Other current and
non-current liabilities   (0.4) 

Interest rate contracts
  

Other current and
non-current liabilities   (29.0)  

Other current and
non-current liabilities   (52.3) 

      
 

     
 

Total derivatives not designated as hedging instruments     $ (30.5)    $ (52.7) 
      

 

     

 

The fair values of the derivatives were recorded between Other current and non-current assets and Other current and non-current liabilities as appropriate in
the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. As of September 30, 2013, the amount recorded to Other current assets for foreign currency contracts was $0.0
million, and the amount recorded to Other current liabilities for foreign currency contracts was ($0.3) million. The amounts recorded to Other current and non-
current assets for commodity contracts were $0.1 million and $0.1 million, respectively. The amounts recorded to Other current and non-current liabilities for
commodity contracts were ($1.2) million and ($0.2) million, respectively. The amounts recorded to Other current and non-current liabilities for interest rate
contracts were ($26.2) million and ($2.8) million, respectively.
 

14



Table of Contents

As of December 31, 2012, the amount recorded to Other current liabilities for foreign currency contracts was ($0.2) million. The amounts recorded to Other
current and non-current assets and Other current and non-current liabilities for commodity contracts were $0.1 million, $0.1 million, ($0.3) million and ($0.1)
million, respectively. The amounts recorded to Other current and non-current liabilities for interest rate contracts were ($31.2) million and ($21.1) million,
respectively.

The following tabular disclosures further describe the Company’s derivative instruments and their impact on the results of operations of the Company
(dollars in millions):
 

   
Three months ended
September 30, 2013   

Three months ended
September 30, 2012  

   

Location of
gain

recognized on
derivatives   

Amount of
gain

recognized on
derivatives   

Location of
gain

recognized on
derivatives   

Amount of
gain

recognized on
derivatives  

Derivatives not designated as hedging
instruments        

Foreign currency contracts   Other expense, net  $ 0.2   Other expense, net   $ 0.0  
Commodity contracts   Other expense, net   0.4   Other expense, net    1.5  
Interest rate contracts   Interest expense    5.2   Interest expense    5.0  

      
 

     
 

Total gain recognized on derivatives
not designated as hedging instruments     $ 5.8     $ 6.5  

      

 

     

 

   
Nine months ended
September 30, 2013   

Nine months ended
September 30, 2012  

   

Location of
(loss) gain

recognized on
derivatives   

Amount of
(loss) gain

recognized on
derivatives   

Location of
gain (loss)

recognized on
derivatives   

Amount of
gain (loss)

recognized on
derivatives  

Derivatives not designated as hedging
instruments        

Foreign currency contracts   Other expense, net  $ (1.3)  Other expense, net   $ 0.3  
Commodity contracts   Other expense, net   (2.1)  Other expense, net    (0.0) 
Interest rate contracts   Interest expense    23.3   Interest expense    16.3  

      
 

     
 

Total gain recognized on derivatives
not designated as hedging instruments     $ 19.9     $ 16.6  
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NOTE H. PRODUCT WARRANTY LIABILITIES

Product warranty liability activities consisted of the following (dollars in millions):
 

   Three months ended September 30,   Nine months ended September 30,  
   2013   2012   2013   2012  
Beginning balance   $ 105.6   $ 111.1   $ 109.7   $ 115.4  
Payments    (10.1)   (12.4)   (30.4)   (34.6) 
Increase in liability (warranty issued during period)    7.5    5.6    20.8    20.1  
Net adjustment to liability    (11.4)   2.0    (8.9)   5.0  
Accretion (for predecessor liabilities)    0.1    0.2    0.5    0.6  

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Ending balance   $ 91.7   $ 106.5   $ 91.7   $ 106.5  
    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

As of September 30, 2013, the current and non-current liabilities were $38.6 million and $53.1 million, respectively. As of September 30, 2012, the current
and non-current liabilities were $33.2 million and $73.3 million, respectively.

During the third quarter of 2013, the Company completed an analysis of its Dual Power Inverter Module (“DPIM”) extended coverage program and
determined, based on current claims, that the product warranty liability should be reduced by $8.2 million. This resulted in a $5.8 million reduction in the General
Motors (“GM”) DPIM receivable and a $2.4 million favorable adjustment to the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income. As of
September 30, 2013 and 2012, the DPIM liability was $44.6 million and $52.8 million with an associated receivable from GM of $18.2 million and $31.6 million,
respectively. Through September 30, 2013, the Company had paid approximately $23.1 million in DPIM claims and received approximately $7.6 million in
reimbursement from GM. The Company will continue to review the total DPIM liability and GM receivable for any changes in estimates as data becomes
available.

The remaining $3.2 million in adjustments to the total liability were the result of general changes in estimates for various products as additional claims data
and field information became available.

Deferred revenue for extended transmission coverage activity (dollars in millions):
 

   Three months ended September 30,   Nine months ended September 30,  
   2013   2012   2013   2012  
Beginning balance   $ 61.1   $ 63.6   $ 63.5   $ 60.7  
Increases    7.6    5.2    15.7    18.0  
Revenue earned    (5.7)   (5.0)   (16.2)   (14.9) 

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Ending balance   $ 63.0   $ 63.8   $ 63.0   $ 63.8  
    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

As of September 30, 2013, the current and non-current liabilities were $21.3 million and $41.7 million, respectively. As of September 30, 2012, the current
and non-current liabilities were $20.7 million and $43.1 million, respectively. The activity above excludes deferred revenue related to defense contracts, which
was $0.3 million as of September 30, 2013.
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NOTE I. OTHER EXPENSE, NET

Other expense, net consisted of the following (dollars in millions):
 

   Three months ended September 30,   Nine months ended September 30,  
   2013   2012   2013   2012  
Grant Program income   $ 0.9   $ 2.3   $ 4.1   $ 6.4  
Impairment loss on investments in technology-related

initiatives    —      (6.4)   (2.5)   (14.4) 
Loss on intercompany foreign exchange    (2.3)   —      (2.3)   —    
Realized loss on derivative contracts (see NOTE G)    (0.7)   (0.6)   (2.3)   (0.8) 
Gain (loss) on foreign exchange    0.1    1.6    (1.8)   (1.4) 
Unrealized gain (loss) on derivative contracts (see NOTE G)    1.3    2.1    (1.1)   1.1  
Public offering fees and expenses    (0.3)   0.0    (0.9)   (6.1) 
Loss on repayments and redemptions of long-term debt    (0.5)   (0.5)   (0.5)   (21.6) 
Termination of Sponsor services agreement    —      —      —      (16.0) 
Loss on re-measurement of employee benefit plans (see NOTE

K)    —      —      —      (2.3) 
Other    —      (0.3)   0.1    (0.3) 

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Total   $ (1.5)  $ (1.8)  $ (7.2)  $ (55.4) 
    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

During the third quarter of 2013, the Company completed a secondary offering of 23,805,000 shares of its common stock held by investment funds
affiliated with The Carlyle Group and Onex Corporation (collectively, the “Sponsors”) to the underwriters in the public offering at the public offering price, less
the underwriting discounts and commissions, or $21.175 per share. The Company received no proceeds from the sale. In connection with the offering, the
Company repurchased from the underwriters 4,700,000 shares of the 23,805,000 shares at the price paid by the underwriters and subsequently retired those
shares. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013, the Company incurred $0.3 million and $0.9 million, respectively, of expenses related to public
offerings.

During the first quarter of 2013, the Company made a $2.5 million investment as part of a co-development agreement signed in 2012 to expand our
position in transmission technologies. Due to various uncertainties surrounding the investment including, but not limited to, the startup nature of the underlying
business, its continued negative cash flow, undercapitalization and unproven business plan, the Company has impaired the investment to zero as of September 30,
2013. The related charge of $2.5 million was recorded in Other expense, net in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the nine
months ended September 30, 2013.

In 2009, the Company was notified by the U.S. Department of Energy that it was selected to receive matching funds from a grant program funded by the
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act for the development of hybrid manufacturing capacity in the U.S. (the “Grant Program”). All applicable costs
associated with the Grant Program have been charged to Engineering — research and development while the U.S. government’s matching reimbursement is
recorded to Other expense, net in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income. Since inception of the Grant Program, the Company has
recorded $44.9 million of Grant Program income to Other expense, net in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income.

For the three months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, the Company recorded $0.2 million and $0.4 million, respectively, as a reduction of the basis of
capital assets purchased under the Grant Program. For the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, the Company recorded $2.9 million and $2.6 million,
respectively, as a reduction of the basis of capital assets purchased under the Grant Program. Under the Grant Program, the Company has acquired approximately
$13.1 million of assets of which $7.1 million have been placed in service, resulting in related depreciation of $0.1 million and $0.2 million for the three months
ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, and $0.2 million and $0.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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NOTE J. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other current liabilities consisted of the following (dollars in millions):
 

   

As of
September 30,

2013    

As of
December 31,

2012  
Payroll and related costs   $ 35.2    $ 47.5  
Derivative liabilities    27.6     34.6  
Defense price reduction reserve    26.8     12.0  
Sales allowances    23.5     27.0  
Accrued interest payable    20.8     14.2  
Vendor buyback obligation    9.8     13.9  
Taxes payable    9.2     6.9  
Other accruals    9.9     11.3  

    
 

    
 

Total   $ 162.8    $ 167.4  
    

 

    

 

NOTE K. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Components of net periodic benefit cost consisted of the following (dollars in millions):
 

   Pension Plans   Post-retirement Benefits  
   Three months ended September 30,   Three months ended September 30,  
   2013   2012   2013   2012  
Net periodic benefit cost:      
Service cost   $ 4.1   $ 3.5   $ 0.8   $ 1.0  
Interest cost    1.0    0.9    1.5    1.8  
Expected return on assets    (1.6)   (1.4)   —      —    
Prior service cost    0.1    0.0    (0.9)   —    
Loss    0.2    0.3    —      —    
Settlement loss    —      —      —      —    

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Net periodic benefit cost   $ 3.8   $ 3.3   $ 1.4   $ 2.8  
    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

   Pension Plans   Post-retirement Benefits  
   Nine months ended September 30,   Nine months ended September 30,  
   2013   2012   2013   2012  
Net periodic benefit cost:      
Service cost   $ 12.3   $ 11.7   $ 2.4   $ 2.9  
Interest cost    3.0    3.2    4.4    5.4  
Expected return on assets    (5.0)   (4.5)   —      —    
Prior service cost    0.1    0.0    (2.7)   —    
Loss    0.5    1.0    —      —    
Settlement loss    —      2.3    —      —    

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Net periodic benefit cost   $ 10.9   $ 13.7   $ 4.1   $ 8.3  
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NOTE L. INCOME TAXES

The effective tax rate for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 was (38.5%) and (38.3%), respectively. For the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2013, the Company recorded total tax expense of ($27.9) million and ($76.1) million, respectively. The effective tax rate for the three and nine
months ended September 30, 2012 was (34.6%) and 157.8%, respectively. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, the Company recorded a
total tax (expense) benefit of ($17.0) million and $307.9 million, respectively. The change in the effective tax rates from 2012 to 2013 was principally driven by
the release of the domestic valuation allowance on the Company’s deferred tax assets in the second quarter of 2012 resulting in an income tax benefit of $384.8
million.

The need to establish a valuation allowance against the deferred tax assets is assessed periodically based on a more-likely-than-not realization threshold, in
accordance with authoritative accounting guidance. Appropriate consideration is given to all positive and negative evidence related to that realization. In
assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that all or some portion of the deferred tax assets will
not be realized. This assessment considers, among other matters, the nature, frequency and severity of recent losses, forecasts of future profitability, the duration
of statutory carryforward periods, experience with tax attributes expiring unused, and tax planning alternatives. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is
dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences become deductible. Management considers the
scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment.

Management has determined, based on the evaluation of both objective and subjective evidence available, that a domestic valuation allowance is not
necessary and that it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets are fully realizable. The Company has reached a sustained period of profitability and
believes its objectively measured positive evidence outweighs the negative evidence. The Company continues to provide for a valuation allowance on certain of
its foreign deferred tax assets.

In September 2013, the U.S. Department of the Treasury and the Internal Revenue Service issued final and proposed regulations which provide guidance
with respect to capitalization treatment of tangible personal property. The Company has reviewed the changes and anticipates no material impact to the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with the FASB’s authoritative guidance on accounting for uncertainty in income taxes, the Company had no liability for unrecognized tax
benefits as of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012. The accounting guidance prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attributes for the
financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. For the year ended December 31, 2012, the return
will remain subject to examination by the various taxing authorities for the duration of the applicable statute of limitations (generally three years from the later of
the date of filing or the due date of the return).
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NOTE M. ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

The following table reconciles changes in Accumulated other comprehensive loss (“AOCL”) by component (net of tax, dollars in millions):
 

   Nine months ended September 30, 2013  

   
Available-for-
sale securities  

Defined
benefit

pension items  
Foreign

currency items          Total         
Beginning balance of AOCL   $ 2.2   $ (36.9)  $ (9.2)  $ (43.9) 

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Other comprehensive loss before reclassifications    (0.1)   —      (5.2)   (5.3) 
Amounts reclassified from AOCL    —      (1.3)   —      (1.3) 

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Net current period other comprehensive loss   $ (0.1)  $ (1.3)  $ (5.2)  $ (6.6) 
    

 
   

 
   

 
   

 

Total AOCL   $ 2.1   $ (38.2)  $ (14.4)  $ (50.5) 
    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

The following table shows the location in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income affected by reclassifications from AOCL
(dollars in millions):
 

   Three months ended September 30, 2013

AOCL Components   

Amount
reclassified from

AOCL   

Affected line item in the condensed
consolidated statements of

comprehensive income
Amortization of defined benefit pension items:    

Prior service cost   $ 0.7   Cost of sales

   0.2   

Selling, general and
administrative

Actuarial loss
   (0.1)  

Selling, general and
administrative

   (0.1)  
Engineering – research and
development

    
 

 

Total reclassifications, before tax    0.7   Income before income taxes
Income tax expense    (0.2)  Tax expense

    
 

 

Total reclassifications   $ 0.5   Net of tax
    

 

 

   Nine months ended September 30, 2013

AOCL Components   

Amount
reclassified from

AOCL   

Affected line item in the condensed
consolidated statements of

comprehensive income
Amortization of defined benefit pension items:    

Prior service cost   $ 2.1   Cost of sales

   0.6   

Selling, general and
administrative

Actuarial loss
   (0.3)  

Selling, general and
administrative

   (0.3)  
Engineering – research and
development

    
 

 

Total reclassifications, before tax    2.1   Income before income taxes
Income tax expense    (0.8)  Tax expense

    
 

 

Total reclassifications   $ 1.3   Net of tax
    

 

 

Prior service cost and actuarial loss were included in the computation of the Company’s net periodic benefit cost. Please see NOTE K for additional details.
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NOTE N. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Claims, Disputes, and Litigation

The Company is party to various legal actions, administrative proceedings and claims arising in the ordinary course of business. These proceedings
principally involve commercial claims, product liability claims, personal injury claims and workers’ compensation claims. The Company believes that the
ultimate liability, if any, in excess of amounts already provided for in the financial statements or covered by insurance on the disposition of these matters will not
have a material adverse effect on the financial position, results of operations or cash flows of the Company.

NOTE O. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As of September 30, 2013, investment funds affiliated with the Sponsors owned a total of approximately 69.6% of the Company’s equity. Pursuant to an
amended and restated stockholders agreement, a majority of the Board of Directors has been designated by the Sponsors and is affiliated with the Sponsors. As a
result, the Sponsors or their nominees to the Board of Directors have the ability to control the appointment of management, the entering into of mergers, sales of
substantially all of the Company’s assets and other extraordinary transactions and influence amendments to the Company’s certificate of incorporation. So long as
the Sponsors continue to own a majority of the Company’s equity, they will have the ability to control the vote in any election of directors and will have the
ability to prevent any transaction that requires stockholder approval regardless of whether others believe the transaction is in the Company’s best interests. The
interests of the Sponsors could conflict with those of the Company’s other stockholders. In addition, the Sponsors may in the future own businesses that directly
compete with the Company.

7.125% Senior Notes held by Executive Officers

As of September 30, 2013, Lawrence E. Dewey, our Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer, David S. Graziosi, our Executive Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer, and Robert M. Price, our Vice President, Human Resources, held approximately $100,000, $450,000, and $150,000,
respectively, in aggregate principal amount of the 7.125% Senior Notes.

Repurchase of Common Stock held by Sponsors

During the third quarter of 2013, the Company completed a secondary offering of 23,805,000 shares of its common stock held by investment funds
affiliated with the Sponsors to the underwriters in the public offering at the public offering price, less the underwriting discounts and commissions, or $21.175 per
share. The Company received no proceeds from the sale. In connection with the offering, the Company repurchased from the underwriters 4,700,000 shares of the
23,805,000 shares at the price paid by the underwriters and subsequently retired those shares.
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NOTE P. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The Company presents both basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) amounts. Basic EPS was calculated by dividing net income by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding during the reporting period. Diluted EPS was calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average number
of common shares and common equivalent shares outstanding during the reporting period that are calculated using the treasury stock method for stock-based
awards. The treasury stock method assumes that the Company uses the proceeds from the exercise of awards to repurchase common stock at the average market
price during the period. The assumed proceeds under the treasury stock method include the purchase price that the grantee will pay in the future, compensation
cost for future service that the Company has not yet recognized and any tax benefits that would be credited to additional paid-in-capital when the award generates
a tax deduction. If there would be a shortfall resulting in a charge to additional paid-in-capital, such an amount would be a reduction of the proceeds to the extent
of the gains.

The following table reconciles the numerators and denominators used to calculate basic EPS and diluted EPS (in millions, except per share data):
 

   Three months ended September 30,    Nine months ended September 30,  
   2013    2012    2013    2012  
Net income   $ 44.5    $ 32.2    $ 122.5    $ 503.0  

    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

Weighted average shares of common stock outstanding    184.4     181.9     185.0     181.6  
Dilutive effect stock-based awards    3.6     3.6     3.6     4.4  

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

Diluted weighted average shares of common stock
outstanding    188.0     185.5     188.6     186.0  

    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

Basic earnings per share attributable to common stockholders   $ 0.24    $ 0.18    $ 0.66    $ 2.77  
    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

Diluted earnings per share attributable to common
stockholders   $ 0.24    $ 0.17    $ 0.65    $ 2.70  

    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

NOTE Q. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In October 2013, the Company entered into three new interest rate swaps to hedge its variable interest rate exposure on the Senior Secured Credit Facility.
The first has a notional amount of $75.0 million and is effective from August 2016 to August 2019 at an all-in fixed rate of 3.08% and a LIBOR floor of 1.00%
with no independent collateral requirement. The second has a notional amount of $50.0 million and is effective from August 2016 to August 2019 at an all-in
fixed rate of 2.99% and a LIBOR floor of 1.00% with no independent collateral requirement. The third has a notional amount of $50.0 million and is effective
from August 2016 to August 2019 at an all-in fixed rate of 2.98% and a LIBOR floor of 1.00% with no independent collateral requirement.
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ITEM 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
  

The following discussion and analysis is intended to help the reader understand our business, financial condition, results of operations, liquidity and
capital resources. You should read this discussion in conjunction with our condensed consolidated interim financial statements and the related notes contained
elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

The statements in this discussion regarding industry trends, our expectations regarding our future performance, liquidity and capital resources and other
non-historical statements are forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are subject to numerous risks and uncertainties, including, but not
limited to, the risks and uncertainties described in “Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” and Part II, Item 1A “Risk Factors” below. Our
actual results may differ materially from those contained in or implied by any forward-looking statements.

Overview

Allison Transmission Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries (“our,” “us” or “we”) design and manufacture fully-automatic transmissions for medium- and
heavy-duty commercial vehicles, medium- and heavy-tactical U.S. defense vehicles and hybrid-propulsion systems for transit buses. We generate our net sales
principally from the sale of transmissions, transmission parts, support equipment, defense kits, engineering services and extended transmission warranty coverage
to a wide array of original equipment manufacturers (“OEMs”), distributors and the U.S. government. Although approximately 78% of our net sales were
generated in North America in 2012, we have a global presence, serving customers in Europe, Asia, South America and Africa. We have 12 different transmission
product lines and serve customers through an established network of approximately 1,400 authorized independent distributors and dealers worldwide. Since the
introduction of our first fully-automatic transmission over 60 years ago, our products have gained acceptance in a wide variety of applications, including on-
highway trucks (distribution, refuse, construction, fire and emergency), buses (principally school, transit and hybrid-transit), motorhomes, off-highway vehicles
and equipment (principally energy, mining and construction) and defense vehicles (wheeled and tracked).

Recent Developments

In October 2013, we entered into three new interest rate swaps to hedge our variable interest rate exposure on the Senior Secured Credit Facility. The first
has a notional amount of $75.0 million and is effective from August 2016 to August 2019 at an all-in fixed rate of 3.08% and a London Interbank Offered Rate
(“LIBOR”) floor of 1.00% with no independent collateral requirement. The second has a notional amount of $50.0 million and is effective from August 2016 to
August 2019 at an all-in fixed rate of 2.99% and a LIBOR floor of 1.00% with no independent collateral requirement. The third has a notional amount of $50.0
million and is effective from August 2016 to August 2019 at an all-in fixed rate of 2.98% and a LIBOR floor of 1.00% with no independent collateral
requirement.
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Trends Impacting Our Business

Our net sales are driven by commercial vehicle production, which tends to be highly correlated to macroeconomic conditions. According to America’s
Commercial Transportation Research, commercial truck and bus production volumes in our North American on-highway markets are projected to grow, but to
remain below the 1998-2008 average production levels through 2015. In the fourth quarter of 2013, we expect net sales to stabilize on a year-over-year basis, an
improvement relative to the sales declines experienced through the first three quarters of the year. We continue to anticipate improving trends in the fourth quarter
of 2013 which we expect to be driven by growth in global On-Highway and Service Parts, Support Equipment & Other end markets, and abating year-over-year
declines in the North America Off-Highway and North America Hybrid-Propulsion Systems for Transit Bus end markets.

Third Quarter Net Sales by End Market (in millions)
 

End Market   
Q3 2013
Net Sales   

Q3 2012
Net Sales   % Variance 

North America On-Highway   $ 212    $ 189     12% 
North America Hybrid Propulsion Systems for Transit Bus   $ 15    $ 30     (50%) 
North America Off-Highway   $ 9    $ 22     (59%) 
Defense   $ 52    $ 74     (30%) 
Outside North America On-Highway   $ 70    $ 73     (4%) 
Outside North America Off-Highway   $ 16    $ 22     (27%) 
Service Parts, Support Equipment and Other   $ 92    $ 84     10% 

    
 

    
 

  

Total Net Sales   $ 466    $ 494     (6%) 
    

 

    

 

  

North America On-Highway end market net sales were up 12% for the third quarter 2013 compared to the third quarter 2012, principally driven by higher
demand for Rugged Duty and Highway Series models.

North America Hybrid-Propulsion Systems for Transit Bus end market net sales were down 50% for the third quarter 2013 compared to the third quarter
2012, principally driven by lower demand and intra-year movement in the timing of orders.

North America Off-Highway end market net sales were down 59% for the third quarter 2013 compared to the third quarter of 2012, principally driven by
lower demand from hydraulic fracturing applications, but essentially flat for the third consecutive quarter.

Defense end market net sales were down 30% for the third quarter 2013 compared to the third quarter 2012, principally driven by continued reductions in
U.S. defense spending to longer term averages experienced during periods without active conflicts.

Outside North America On-Highway end market net sales were down 4% for the third quarter 2013 compared to the third quarter 2012 reflecting weakness
in Japan truck, China and Latin America bus tenders timing, partially offset by improved demand conditions in Russia bus.

Outside North America Off-Highway end market net sales were down 27% for the third quarter 2013 compared to the third quarter 2012, principally driven
by weakness in the mining sector.

Service parts, support equipment and other end market net sales were up 10% for the third quarter 2013 compared to the third quarter 2012 principally
driven by higher demand for North America On-Highway and Off-Highway service parts.
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Key Components of our Results of Operations

Net sales

We generate our net sales principally from the sale of transmissions, transmission parts, support equipment, defense kits, engineering services and extended
transmission coverage to a wide array of OEMs, distributors and the U.S. government. Sales are recorded net of provisions for customer allowances and other
rebates. Engineering services are recorded as net sales in accordance with the terms of the contract. The associated costs are recorded in cost of sales. We also
have royalty agreements with third parties that provide net sales as a result of joint efforts in developing marketable products.

Cost of sales

Our most significant components of cost of sales are purchased parts, the overhead expense related to our manufacturing operations and direct labor
associated with the manufacture and assembly of transmissions and parts. For the nine months ended September 30, 2013, direct material costs were
approximately 68%, overhead costs were approximately 26%, and direct labor costs were approximately 6% of total cost of sales. We are subject to changes in
our cost of sales caused by movements in underlying commodity prices. We seek to hedge against this risk by using commodity swap contracts and long-term
supply agreements (“LTSAs”). See “Item 3 Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk—Commodity Price Risk” included below.

Selling, general and administrative expenses

The principal components of our selling, general and administrative expenses are salaries and benefits for our office personnel, advertising and promotional
expenses, product warranty expense, expenses relating to certain information technology systems and amortization of our intangibles.

Engineering — research and development

We incur costs in connection with research and development programs that are expected to contribute to future earnings. Such costs are expensed as
incurred. In 2009, we were notified by the U.S. Department of Energy (“DOE”) that we were selected to receive matching funds up to $62.8 million from a cost-
share grant program funded by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act for the development of hybrid-propulsion system manufacturing capacity in the
U.S. (the “Grant Program”). Applicable costs associated with the Grant Program have been charged to Engineering — research and development. The DOE’s
matching reimbursement is recorded to Other expense, net in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income, included in Part I, Item 1 of this
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, or in the case of capital expenditure, as a reduction in the cost basis of the capital asset.
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Non-GAAP Financial Measures

We use Adjusted net income to measure our overall profitability because we believe it better reflects our cash flow generation by capturing the actual cash
interest paid and cash taxes paid rather than our interest expense and tax expense as calculated under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America (“GAAP”) and excludes the impact of the non-cash annual amortization of certain intangible assets and other certain non-recurring items. We use
Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA excluding technology-related license expenses, Adjusted EBITDA margin, Adjusted EBITDA margin excluding
technology-related license expenses and Adjusted free cash flow to evaluate and control our cash operating costs and to measure our operating profitability. We
believe the presentation of Adjusted net income, Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA excluding technology-related license expenses, Adjusted EBITDA
margin, Adjusted EBITDA margin excluding technology-related license expenses and Adjusted free cash flow enhances our investors’ overall understanding of
the financial performance and cash flow of our business.

You should not consider Adjusted net income, Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA excluding technology-related license expenses, Adjusted EBITDA
margin and Adjusted EBITDA margin excluding technology-related license expenses as an alternative to net income, determined in accordance with GAAP, as an
indicator of operating performance. You should not consider Adjusted free cash flow as an alternative to net cash provided by operating activities, determined in
accordance with GAAP, as an indicator of our cash flow.

A directly comparable GAAP measure to Adjusted net income, Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA excluding technology-related license expenses is
Net income. A directly comparable GAAP measure to Adjusted free cash flow is Net cash provided by operating activities. The following is a reconciliation of
Net income to Adjusted net income, Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA excluding technology-related license expenses, Adjusted EBITDA margin and
Adjusted EBITDA margin excluding technology-related license expenses, and a reconciliation of Net cash provided by operating activities to Adjusted free cash
flow:
 

   

For the three
months ended
September 30,   

For the nine
months ended
September 30,  

(unaudited, in millions)   2013   2012   2013   2012  
Net income   $ 44.5   $ 32.2   $ 122.5   $ 503.0  
plus:      

Interest expense, net    37.3    40.8    104.5    115.6  
Cash interest expense    (33.3)   (31.8)   (112.9)   (120.6) 
Income tax expense (benefit)    27.9    17.0    76.1    (307.9) 
Cash income taxes    (0.5)   (2.6)   (3.5)   (9.0) 
Technology-related investments expense (a)    —      6.4    2.5    14.4  
Public offering expenses (b)    0.3    0.0    0.9    6.1  
Fee to terminate services agreement with Sponsors (c)    —      —      —      16.0  
Amortization of intangible assets    25.1    37.5    80.1    112.5  

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Adjusted net income   $ 101.3   $ 99.5   $ 270.2   $ 330.1  
Cash interest expense    33.3    31.8    112.9    120.6  
Cash income taxes    0.5    2.6    3.5    9.0  
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment    24.4    26.1    74.1    76.0  
Loss on repayments and redemptions of long-term debt (d)    0.5    0.5    0.5    21.6  
Dual power inverter module extended coverage (e)    (2.4)   —      (2.4)   9.4  
Benefit plan re-measurement (f)    —      —      —      2.3  
Unrealized (gain) loss on commodity hedge contracts (g)    (0.8)   (2.1)   1.1    (0.9) 
Unrealized loss (gain) on foreign exchange (h)    1.8    (0.0)   2.3    (0.2) 
Restructuring charge (i)    —      —      1.0    —    
Other (j)    3.0    1.1    10.7    5.3  

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Adjusted EBITDA   $ 161.6   $ 159.5   $ 473.9   $ 573.2  
Adjusted EBITDA excluding technology-related license

expenses (k)   $ 161.6   $ 171.5   $ 479.9   $ 585.2  
    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

Net sales   $ 466.3   $ 493.5   $1,435.8   $1,654.8  
Adjusted EBITDA margin    34.7%   32.3%   33.0%   34.6% 
Adjusted EBITDA margin excluding technology-related license expenses (k)    34.7%   34.8%   33.4%   35.4% 
Net cash provided by operating activities   $ 131.0   $ 138.9   $ 315.4   $ 385.4  
(Deductions) or additions to reconcile to Adjusted free cash flow:      
Additions of long-lived assets    (15.4)   (31.4)   (41.2)   (93.9) 
Fee to terminate services agreement with Sponsors (c)    —      —      —      16.0  
Technology-related license expenses (k)    —      12.0    6.0    12.0  

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Adjusted free cash flow   $   115.6   $    119.5   $   280.2   $   319.5  
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(a) Represents an impairment charge (recorded in Other expense, net) for investments in co-development agreements with various companies to expand our
position in transmission technologies.

(b) Represents fees and expenses (recorded in Other expense, net) related to our initial public offering in March 2012, proposed and withdrawn secondary
offering in April 2013 and secondary offering in August 2013.

(c) Represents a one-time payment (recorded in Other expense, net) to terminate the services agreement with investment funds affiliated with The Carlyle
Group and Onex Corporation (collectively, our “Sponsors”).

(d) Represents losses (recorded in Other expense, net) realized on the redemptions and repayments of Allison Transmission, Inc.’s (“ATI”), our wholly owned
subsidiary, long-term debt.

(e) During the third quarter of 2013, we conducted a review of the Dual Power Inverter Module (“DPIM”) extended coverage program resulting in a reduction
of the DPIM liability, partially offset by a reduction of the associated General Motors (“GM”) receivable totaling a net credit (recorded in Selling, general
and administrative expenses). During the second quarter of 2012, we recorded a charge (recorded in Selling, general and administrative expenses) to
increase our liability related to the DPIM extended coverage program due to claims data and additional design issues identified during introduction of
replacement units. The total liability and GM receivable will continue to be reviewed for any changes in estimate as additional claims data and field
information become available.

(f) Represents a settlement charge (recorded in Other expense, net) related to the settlement of pension obligations for certain qualified hourly employees from
our hourly defined benefit pension plan to GM’s pension plan as part of the asset purchase agreement dated June 28, 2007.

(g) Represents (gains) losses (recorded in Other expense, net) on the mark-to-market of our commodity hedge contracts.
(h) Represents losses (gains) (recorded in Other expense, net) on the mark-to-market of our foreign currency hedge contracts and on intercompany financing

transactions related to investments in plant assets for our India facility.
(i) Represents a charge (recorded in Selling, general and administrative, and Engineering – research and development) related to an employee headcount

reduction program in the second quarter of 2013.
(j) Represents employee stock compensation expense (recorded in Cost of sales, Selling, general and administrative, and Engineering – research and

development) and service fees paid to our Sponsors (recorded in Selling, general and administrative expenses).
(k) Represents payments (recorded in Engineering – research and development) for licenses to expand our position in transmission technologies.
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Results of Operations

Comparison of three months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012

The following table sets forth certain financial information for the three months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012. The following table and discussion
should be read in conjunction with the information contained in our condensed consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto included in Part I, Item 1 of
this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.
 

   Three months ended September 30,  

(unaudited, dollars in millions)   2013   
%

of net sales  2012   
%

of net sales 
Net sales   $466.3    —     $493.5    —    
Gross profit    206.1    44.2%   224.4    45.5% 
Operating expenses:      

Selling, general and administrative expenses    74.0    15.9    96.7    19.6  
Engineering — research and development    20.9    4.5    35.9    7.3  

Total operating expenses    94.9    20.4    132.6    26.9  
    

 
   

 
   

 
   

 

Operating income    111.2    23.8    91.8    18.6  
Other expense, net:      

Interest expense, net    (37.3)   (8.0)   (40.8)   (8.3) 
Other expense, net    (1.5)   (0.3)   (1.8)   (0.3) 

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Total other expense, net    (38.8)   (8.3)   (42.6)   (8.6) 
    

 
   

 
   

 
   

 

Income before income taxes    72.4    15.5    49.2    10.0  
Income tax expense    (27.9)   (6.0)   (17.0)   (3.5) 

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Net income   $ 44.5    9.5%  $ 32.2    6.5% 
    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

Net sales.

Net sales for the quarter ended September 30, 2013 were $466.3 million compared to $493.5 million for the quarter ended September 30, 2012, a decrease
of 5.5%. The decrease was principally driven by a $22.0 million, or 30%, decrease in net sales of defense products due to lower U.S. defense spending, a $19.0
million, or 43%, decrease in net sales of global off-highway products driven by lower demand from North America natural gas fracturing applications due to
weakness in natural gas pricing and lower global demand in the mining sector, and a $15.0 million, or 50%, decrease in net sales of North America hybrid-
propulsion systems for transit buses principally driven by lower demand and intra-year movement in the timing of orders, partially offset by a $23.0 million, or
12%, increase in net sales of North America on-highway commercial products and a $8.0 million, or 10%, increase in net sales of parts and other products.

Gross profit.

Gross profit for the quarter ended September 30, 2013 was $206.1 million compared to $224.4 million for the quarter ended September 30, 2012, a
decrease of 8.2%. The decrease was principally driven by $19.0 million related to decreased net sales and $4.0 million of unfavorable manufacturing performance
principally driven by favorable 2012 performance associated with the building of inventory in preparation for the 2012 UAW Local 933 contract negotiations,
partially offset by $2.0 million of favorable material costs, $2.0 million of favorable foreign exchange and $1.0 million of price increases on certain products.

Selling, general and administrative expenses.

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the quarter ended September 30, 2013 were $74.0 million compared to $96.7 million for the quarter ended
September 30, 2012, a decrease of 23.5%. The decrease was principally driven by $12.4 million of lower intangible asset amortization, a $2.4 million favorable
adjustment related to the DPIM extended coverage program, lower product warranty expense driven by improved performance and reduced global commercial
spending activities, partially offset by $1.9 million of higher stock compensation expense.

Engineering — research and development.

Engineering expenses for the quarter ended September 30, 2013 were $20.9 million compared to $35.9 million for the quarter ended September 30, 2012, a
decrease of 41.8%. The decrease was principally driven by $12.0 million of technology-related license expenses in 2012 to expand our position in transmission
technologies and reduced global spending activities.
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Interest expense, net.

Interest expense, net for the quarter ended September 30, 2013 was $37.3 million compared to $40.8 million for the quarter ended September 30, 2012, a
decrease of 8.6%. The decrease was principally driven by $3.1 million of lower amortization of deferred financing charges, $1.5 million of lower interest expense
as a result of debt repayments, $0.5 million of lower interest expense related to our interest rate swaps, $0.1 million of more favorable mark-to-market
adjustments for our interest rate derivatives and $0.1 million of higher interest income, partially offset by $1.8 million of higher interest expense as a result of
higher interest rates on ATI’s Senior Secured Credit Facility (defined as the Term B-2 Loan due 2017 (“Term B-2 Loan”), Term B-3 Loan due 2019 (“Term B-3
Loan”) and revolving credit facility).

Other expense, net.

Other expense, net for the quarter ended September 30, 2013 was $1.5 million compared to $1.8 million for the quarter ended September 30, 2012, a
decrease of 16.7%. The decrease in expense was principally driven by a $6.4 million impairment of technology-related investments in 2012 and $0.3 million of
reduced miscellaneous expenses, partially offset by $3.8 million of higher unfavorable foreign exchange, $1.4 million of decreased Grant Program income, $0.8
million of higher unrealized losses on derivative contracts, $0.3 million of increased public offering expenses related to our secondary offering in the third quarter
of 2013 and $0.1 million of higher realized losses on derivative contracts.

Income tax expense.

Income tax expense for the third quarter of 2013 was $27.9 million resulting in an effective tax rate of 38.5% versus an effective tax rate of 34.6% in the
third quarter of 2012. The change in effective tax rate was principally driven by decreased discrete activity.
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Comparison of nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012

The following table sets forth certain financial information for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012. The following table and discussion
should be read in conjunction with the information contained in our condensed consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto included in Part I, Item 1 of
this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.
 

   Nine months ended September 30,  

(unaudited, dollars in millions)   2013   
%

of net sales  2012   
%

of net sales 
Net sales   $    1,435.8        —     $    1,654.8        —    
Gross profit    630.5    43.9%   760.1    45.9% 
Operating expenses:      

Selling, general and administrative expenses    247.5    17.2    307.0    18.5  
Engineering — research and development    72.7    5.1    87.0    5.3  

Total operating expenses    320.2    22.3    394.0    23.8  
    

 
   

 
   

 
   

 

Operating income    310.3    21.6    366.1    22.1  
Other expense, net:      

Interest expense, net    (104.5)   (7.3)   (115.6)   (7.0) 
Other expense, net    (7.2)   (0.5)   (55.4)   (3.3) 

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Total other expense, net    (111.7)   (7.8)   (171.0)   (10.3) 
    

 
   

 
   

 
   

 

Income before income taxes    198.6    13.8    195.1    11.8  
Income tax (expense) benefit    (76.1)   (5.3)   307.9    18.6  

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Net income   $ 122.5    8.5%  $ 503.0    30.4% 
    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

Net sales.

Net sales for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 were $1,435.8 million compared to $1,654.8 million for the nine months ended September 30,
2012, a decrease of 13.2%. The decrease was principally driven by a $126.0 million, or 56%, decrease in net sales of global off-highway products driven by lower
demand from North America natural gas fracturing applications due to weakness in natural gas pricing and lower global demand in the mining sector, a $64.0
million, or 28%, decrease in net sales of defense products due to lower U.S. defense spending, a $19.0 million, or 2%, decrease in net sales of global on-highway
commercial products and a $10.0 million, or 12%, decrease in net sales of North America hybrid-propulsion systems for transit buses principally driven by lower
demand due to municipal subsidy and spending constraints, engine emissions improvements and non-hybrid alternatives (e.g. xNG).

Gross profit.

Gross profit for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 was $630.5 million compared to $760.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2012,
a decrease of 17.1%. The decrease was principally driven by $138.0 million related to decreased net sales and $1.0 million of unfavorable manufacturing
performance, partially offset by $4.0 million of price increases on certain products, $4.0 million of favorable foreign exchange and $1.0 million of favorable
material costs.

Selling, general and administrative expenses.

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 were $247.5 million compared to $307.0 million for the nine
months ended September 30, 2012, a decrease of 19.4%. The decrease was principally driven by $32.4 million of lower intangible asset amortization, a $9.4
million charge in 2012 related to the DPIM extended coverage program, a $2.4 million favorable adjustment in 2013 related to the DPIM extended coverage
program and reduced global commercial spending activities, partially offset by $6.2 million of higher stock compensation expense.

Engineering — research and development.

Engineering expenses for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 were $72.7 million compared to $87.0 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2012, a decrease of 16.4%. The decrease was principally driven by $12.0 million of technology-related license expenses in 2012 to expand our
position in transmission technologies and reduced global spending activities, partially offset by $6.0 million of technology-related license expenses in 2013 to
further expand our position in transmission technologies.

Interest expense, net.

Interest expense, net for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 was $104.5 million compared to $115.6 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2012, a decrease of 9.6%. The decrease was principally driven by $12.4 million of lower interest expense as a result of debt repayments and
purchases, $6.9 million more favorable mark-to-market adjustments for our interest rate derivatives, $2.9 million of lower amortization of deferred financing fees
and $2.4 million of lower interest expense as a result of the maturity of $425.0 million of interest rate swaps, partially offset by $10.6 million of higher interest
expense as a result of higher interest rates on ATI’s Senior Secured Credit Facility, $2.8 million of higher interest expense related to higher interest rates on our
effective interest rate swaps and $0.1 million of lower interest income.
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Other expense, net.

Other expense, net for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 was $7.2 million compared to $55.4 million for the nine months ended September 30,
2012, a decrease of 87.0%. The decrease in expense was principally driven by $21.1 million of premiums and expenses in 2012 related to redemptions of long-
term debt, a $16.0 million payment in 2012 to terminate the services agreement with the Sponsors, $11.9 million of lower technology-related investment
impairment expense, $5.2 million of lower public offering expenses, $2.3 million related to the hourly pension plan settlement in 2012 and $0.4 million of
reduced miscellaneous expenses, partially offset by $3.7 million of expenses related to unrealized and realized losses on derivative contracts, $2.7 million of
higher unfavorable foreign exchange and $2.3 million of lower Grant Program income.

Income tax (expense) benefit.

Income tax expense for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 was ($76.1) million resulting in an effective tax rate of (38.3%) versus an effective tax
rate of 157.8% for the nine months ended September 30, 2012. The change in effective tax rate was principally driven by the release of the domestic valuation
allowance on our deferred tax assets in 2012.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

We generate cash principally from our operating activities. We had total available cash and cash equivalents of $152.3 million and $80.2 million as of
September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively. Of the available cash and cash equivalents, approximately $147.3 million and $75.2 million was
deposited in operating accounts while approximately $5.0 million and $5.0 million was invested in U.S. government backed securities as of September 30, 2013
and December 31, 2012, respectively.

Additionally, we had $386.4 million and $372.1 million available under the revolving portion of our Senior Secured Credit Facility, net of approximately
$13.6 million and $27.9 million in letters of credit issued and outstanding as of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively. For the nine months
ended September 30, 2013, we made periodic withdrawals and payments on our revolving credit facility as part of our debt management plans. The maximum
amount outstanding at any time during the period on the revolving credit facility was $20.0 million, and all balances were repaid within the quarter they were
borrowed. As of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, we had no outstanding borrowings on our revolving credit facility.

In March 2012, ATI entered into an amendment with the term loan lenders under its Senior Secured Credit Facility to extend the maturity of approximately
$801.1 million in principal amount of ATI’s Senior Secured Credit Facility Term B-1 Loan due 2014 (“Term B-1 Loan”) from August 2014 to August 2017 and to
increase the applicable margin at our option to either (a) 3.50% over the LIBOR or (b) 2.50% over the greater of the prime lending rate provided by the British
Banking Association or the federal funds effective rate published by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York plus 0.50%.

In August 2012, ATI entered into an amendment with the term loan lenders under its Senior Secured Credit Facility to extend the maturity of approximately
$850.0 million in principal amount of the Term B-1 Loan from August 2014 to August 2019 and to increase the applicable margin at our option to either
(a) 3.25% or 3.00%, subject to our total leverage ratio, over the LIBOR (which may not be less than 1.00%) or (b) 2.25% or 2.00%, subject to our total leverage
ratio, over the greater of the prime lending rate provided by the British Banking Association or the federal funds effective rate published by the Federal Reserve
Bank of New York plus 0.50% (which may not be less than 2.00%).

In October 2012, ATI entered into an amendment with the term loan lenders under its Senior Secured Credit Facility to extend the maturity of $300.0
million of the Term B-1 Loan from August 2014 to August 2019 and to increase the applicable margin at our option to either (a) 3.25% or 3.00%, subject to our
total leverage ratio, over the LIBOR (which may not be less than 1.00%) or (b) 2.25% or 2.00%, subject to our total leverage ratio, over the greater of the prime
lending rate provided by the British Banking Association or the federal funds effective rate published by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York (but not less than
2.00%).

In February 2013, ATI entered into an amendment with the term loan lenders under its Senior Secured Credit Facility to refinance the entire outstanding
principal amount of our Term B-2 Loan to reduce the applicable margin for such term loans at our option to either (a) 3.00% over the LIBOR or (b) 2.00% over
the greater of the prime lending rate provided by the British Banking Association or the federal funds effective rate published by the Federal Reserve Bank of
New York. In February 2013, ATI also entered into an additional amendment with the term loan lenders under its Senior Secured Credit Facility to extend the
maturity of approximately $411.4 million in principal amount of the Term B-1 Loan from August 2014 to August 2017 and to increase the applicable margin at
our option to either (a) 3.00% over the LIBOR or (b) 2.00% over the greater of the prime lending rate provided by the British Banking Association or the federal
funds effective rate published by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York plus 0.50%.

In August 2013, ATI entered into an amendment with the term loan lenders under its Senior Secured Credit Facility to refinance the entire outstanding
principle amount of our Term B-3 Loan to reduce the applicable margin for such term loans at our option to either (a) 2.75% or 2.50%, subject to our total
leverage ratio, over the LIBOR (which may not be less than 1.00%) or (b) 1.75% or 1.50%, subject to our total leverage ratio, over the greater of the prime
lending rate provided by the British Banking Association or the federal funds effective rate published by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York plus 0.50%
(which may not be less than 2.00%).

Our principal uses of cash are operating expenses, capital expenditures, debt service, dividends on common stock and working capital needs. The following
table shows our sources and uses of funds for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 (in millions):
 

   Nine months ended September 30,  
Statement of Cash Flows Data   2013   2012  
Cash flows from operating activities   $ 315.4   $ 385.4  
Cash flows used for investing activities    (45.8)   (108.5) 
Cash flows used for financing activities    (207.7)   (508.3) 

Generally, cash provided by operating activities has been adequate to fund our operations. Due to fluctuations in our cash flows and the growth in our
operations, it may be necessary from time to time in the future to borrow under the Senior Secured Credit Facility to meet cash demands. We anticipate cash
provided by operating activities, cash and cash equivalents and borrowing capacity under the Senior Secured Credit Facility will be sufficient to meet our cash
requirements for the next twelve months.
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Cash provided by operating activities

Operating activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 generated $315.4 million of cash compared to $385.4 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2012. The decrease was principally driven by decreased net sales, higher accounts receivable principally driven by lower accounts receivable at the
end of 2012 as a result of an earlier than expected receipt and lower other liabilities, net; partially offset by lower inventories and higher accounts payable
principally driven by unusually higher inventories and lower accounts payable at the end of 2012 as a result of labor negotiations planning, decreased spending
commensurate with reduced global commercial and product initiatives spending, lower cash interest expense and lower cash income taxes.

Cash used for investing activities

Investing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 used $45.8 million of cash compared to $108.5 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2012. The decrease was principally driven by a decrease of $52.7 million in capital expenditures and a decrease of $8.1 million in investments in
technology-related initiatives. The decrease in capital expenditures was principally driven by the 2012 expansion of our India facility and lower product initiatives
spending.

Cash used for financing activities

Financing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 used $207.7 million of cash compared to $508.3 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2012. The decrease was principally driven by 2012 redemptions of $326.9 million of ATI’s 11.0% senior cash pay notes due November 2015,
$60.9 million of decreased principal payments on ATI’s Senior Secured Credit Facility, $23.4 million of increased proceeds from the exercise of stock options and
$15.8 million of decreased debt financing fees, partially offset by $99.5 million related to the repurchase of our common stock in connection with the August
2013 secondary offering by our Sponsors and $33.4 million of increased dividend payments.

Our liquidity requirements are significant, principally due to our debt service requirements. A one-eighth percent change in assumed interest rates for the
Senior Secured Credit Facility, if fully drawn, as of September 30, 2013 would have a yearly impact of $0.7 million on interest expense, which includes the partial
offset of our interest rate swaps. Our ability to make payments on and to refinance our indebtedness, and to fund planned capital expenditures will depend on our
ability to generate cash in the future. This is subject to general economic, financial, competitive, legislative, regulatory and other factors that may be beyond our
control.

The Senior Secured Credit Facility requires us to maintain a specified maximum total senior secured leverage ratio of 5.50x for the remainder of the term
of the loans. As of September 30, 2013, we were in compliance with the maximum total senior secured leverage ratio, achieving a 3.48x ratio. Within the terms of
the Senior Secured Credit Facility, a senior secured leverage ratio at or below 3.50x results in a 12.5 basis point reduction to the revolving credit facility
commitment fee and elimination of excess cash flow payments on the Senior Secured Credit Facility for the applicable year. These reductions remain in effect as
long as we continue to achieve a senior secured leverage ratio at or below 3.50x. A total leverage ratio at or below 3.25x results in a 25 basis point reduction to
the applicable margin on our Term B-3 Loan. This reduction would remain in effect as long as we achieve a total leverage ratio at or below 3.25x. As of
September 30, 2013, the total leverage ratio was 4.26x.

In addition to the maximum total secured leverage ratio, the Senior Secured Credit Facility and the indenture governing ATI’s 7.125% senior cash pay notes
due May 2019 (“7.125% Senior Notes”) include, among other things, customary restrictions (subject to certain exceptions) on our ability to incur certain
indebtedness or liens, make certain investments or declare or pay certain dividends. As of September 30, 2013, we are in compliance with all covenants under the
Senior Secured Credit Facility.

Prior to May 15, 2015, we may redeem some or all of our 7.125% Senior Notes by paying the applicable “make-whole” premium. At any time on or after
May 15, 2015, we may redeem some or all of the 7.125% Senior Notes at specified redemption prices in the governing indenture.

To manage interest rate risk associated with our variable rate debt, we have eight interest rate swap contracts as of September 30, 2013 that qualify as
derivatives under authoritative accounting guidance for derivative instruments and hedging activities. Our interest rate swaps do not qualify for hedge accounting
treatment and, as a result, fair value adjustments are charged directly to interest expense in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income.
Despite the fact that we have elected a mark-to-market approach as opposed to hedge accounting treatment, the contracts are used strictly as an economic hedge
and not for speculative purposes.

Certain of our interest rate derivatives contain credit-risk and collateral contingent features under which downgrades in our credit rating could require us to
increase our collateral. Certain interest rate derivatives also contain provisions under which we may be required to post additional collateral if LIBOR reaches
certain levels. As of September 30, 2013, we have posted collateral of $1.7 million in cash and $9.0 million in letters of credit as a result of changes in interest
rates. We may be required to post additional collateral until the LIBOR curve reaches zero.

Assuming all collateral contingent features remain the same, a 1% increase or decrease in the LIBOR interest rate curve as of September 30, 2013 would
correspondingly reduce our collateral requirement by approximately $4.5 million or increase our collateral requirement by approximately $4.5 million,
respectively, in a combination of cash and letters of credit.
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Contingencies

We are a party to various legal actions and administrative proceedings and subject to various claims arising in the ordinary course of business, including
those relating to commercial transactions, product liability, safety, health, taxes, environmental and other matters. For more information, see NOTE N of the notes
to our condensed consolidated financial statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Critical Accounting Policies and Significant Accounting Estimates

Our principal accounting policies are described in the “Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation” section in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements in Part II, Item 8 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012 as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”) on February 28, 2013. The preparation of the condensed consolidated financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of some assets and liabilities and, in some instances, the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the applicable reporting period. Differences between actual and estimate are recorded in the period identified. Management believes the
accounting estimates discussed above represent those accounting estimates requiring the exercise of judgment where a different set of judgments could result in
the greatest changes to our reported results.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We are not a party to any off-balance sheet arrangements.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2013, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued authoritative accounting guidance on the presentation of an unrecognized tax
benefit when net operating loss (“NOL”) carryforwards exist. The guidance requires presentation of an unrecognized tax benefit, or a portion of an unrecognized
tax benefit, in the financial statements as a reduction to a deferred tax asset for an NOL carryforward, a similar tax loss or a tax credit carryforward. The guidance
is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2013. While the adoption of this guidance is not expected to have an effect on our consolidated financial
statements, it could affect the accounting treatment applied under these circumstances in the future.

In July 2013, the FASB issued authoritative accounting guidance on the inclusion of the Fed Funds Effective Swap Rate as a benchmark interest rate for
hedge accounting purposes. The guidance also removes the restriction on using different benchmark rates for similar hedges. The guidance became effective for
qualifying new or redesignated hedging relationships entered into on or after July 17, 2013. The adoption of this guidance did not have an effect on our
consolidated financial statements as the Company does not currently elect hedge accounting treatment on its interest rate swaps.

In March 2013, the FASB issued authoritative accounting guidance on a parent company’s accounting for the cumulative translation adjustment upon
derecognition of certain subsidiaries or groups of assets within a foreign entity or of an investment in a foreign entity. The guidance clarifies that when a parent
company ceases to have a controlling financial interest in a subsidiary or group of assets, the cumulative translation adjustment should be released into net income
only if the sale or transfer results in the complete or substantially complete liquidation of the foreign entity in which the subsidiary or group of assets had resided.
The guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2013. While the adoption of this guidance is not expected to have an effect on our
consolidated financial statements, it could affect the accounting treatment applied under these circumstances in the future.

In February 2013, the FASB issued authoritative accounting guidance on presentation and disclosure of reclassifications out of accumulated other
comprehensive income. The guidance gives an entity the option to present significant amounts reclassified out of each component of accumulated other
comprehensive income and the income statement line items affected by the reclassification either parenthetically on the face of the financial statements or in the
footnotes to the financial statements. The guidance is effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2012. The adoption of this
guidance did not have a material effect on our condensed consolidated financial statements; however, it requires us to present additional disclosures in the
footnotes to the condensed consolidated financial statements when significant amounts are reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income.

In January 2013, the FASB issued authoritative accounting guidance clarifying the scope of new balance sheet offsetting disclosures issued in December
2011 for derivatives, repurchase agreements, and securities lending transactions that are either offset in the financial statements or subject to an enforceable
master netting arrangement or similar agreement. The guidance is effective for interim and annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013. The adoption of
this guidance did not have a material effect on our condensed consolidated financial statements.

In December 2011, the FASB issued authoritative accounting guidance on enhancing disclosures to evaluate the effect or potential effect of netting
arrangements on an entity’s financial position. The guidance requires improved information and disclosures about gross and net amounts of recognized assets and
liabilities of financial and derivative instruments that are offset in an entity’s statement of financial position. The guidance applies retrospectively for interim and
annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013. The adoption of this guidance did not have a material effect on our condensed consolidated
financial statements.
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Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions

As of September 30, 2013, our Sponsors each owned approximately 34.8% of our equity. Pursuant to an amended and restated stockholders agreement, a
majority of the Board of Directors has been designated by our Sponsors and is affiliated with our Sponsors. As a result, our Sponsors or their nominees to the
Board of Directors have the ability to control the appointment of our management, the entering into of mergers, sales of substantially all of our assets and other
extraordinary transactions and influence amendments to our certificate of incorporation. So long as our Sponsors continue to own a majority of our equity, they
will have the ability to control the vote in any election of directors and will have the ability to prevent any transaction that requires stockholder approval
regardless of whether others believe the transaction is in our best interests. The interests of our Sponsors could conflict with those of our other stockholders. In
addition, our Sponsors may in the future own businesses that directly compete with ours.

7.125% Senior Notes held by Executive Officers

As of September 30, 2013, Lawrence E. Dewey, our Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer, David S. Graziosi, our Executive Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer, and Robert M. Price, our Vice President, Human Resources, held approximately $100,000, $450,000, and $150,000,
respectively in aggregate principal amount of the 7.125% Senior Notes.

Repurchase of Common Stock held by Sponsors

During the third quarter of 2013, we completed a secondary offering of 23,805,000 shares of our common stock held by investment funds affiliated with
the Sponsors to the underwriters in the public offering at the public offering price, less the underwriting discounts and commissions, or $21.175 per share. We
received no proceeds from the sale. In connection with the offering, we repurchased from the underwriters 4,700,000 shares of the 23,805,000 shares at the price
paid by the underwriters and subsequently retired those shares.
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Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements. The words “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “estimate” and other
expressions that are predictions of or indicate future events and trends and that do not relate to historical matters identify forward-looking statements. You should
not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. Although forward-looking statements reflect management’s good faith beliefs, reliance should not
be placed on forward-looking statements because they involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors, which may cause the actual results,
performance or achievements to differ materially from anticipated future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking
statements. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date the statements are made. We undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-
looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events, changed circumstances or otherwise. These forward-looking statements are subject to
numerous risks and uncertainties, including, but not limited to: risks related to our substantial indebtedness; our participation in markets that are competitive; the
highly cyclical industries in which certain of our end users operate; the failure of markets outside North America to increase adoption of fully-automatic
transmissions; the concentration of our net sales in our top five customers and the loss of any one of these; future reductions or changes in government subsidies
for hybrid vehicles, U.S. defense spending; general economic and industry conditions; the discovery of defects in our products, resulting in delays in new model
launches, recall campaigns and/or increased warranty costs and reduction in future sales or damage to our brand and reputation; our ability to prepare for, respond
to and successfully achieve our objectives relating to technological and market developments and changing customer needs; risks associated with our
international operations; and labor strikes, work stoppages or similar labor disputes, which could significantly disrupt our operations or those of our principal
customers.

Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from our expectations are disclosed in Part I, Item 1A of our Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012 as filed with the SEC on February 28, 2013, as updated by Part II, Item 1A “Risk Factors” of our Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2013 as filed with the SEC on April 30, 2013. All written and oral forward-looking statements attributable to us, or
persons acting on our behalf, are expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements as well as other cautionary statements that are made from time
to time in our public communications. You should evaluate all forward-looking statements made in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q in the context of these
risks and uncertainties.
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ITEM 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
  

Our exposure to market risk consists of changes in interest rates, foreign currency rate fluctuations and movements in commodity prices.

Interest Rate Risk

We are subject to interest rate market risk in connection with a portion of our long-term debt. Our interest rate exposure relates to outstanding amounts
under our Senior Secured Credit Facility. Our Senior Secured Credit Facility provides for variable rate borrowings of up to $2,646.3 million including $386.4
million under our revolving credit facility, net of $13.6 million of letters of credit. Assuming the Senior Secured Credit Facility is fully drawn as of September 30,
2013, a one-eighth percentage point increase or decrease in the applicable interest rates would correspondingly change our interest expense on the Senior Secured
Credit Facility by approximately $0.7 million per year. This includes the partial offset of the effective interest rate swaps described below. As of September 30,
2013, we had no outstanding borrowings against the revolving credit facility.

From time to time, we enter into interest rate swap agreements to hedge our variable interest rate debt. Below is a list of our interest rate swaps as of
September 30, 2013:
 

   Counterparty   
  Effective  

Date   

Notional
Amount

  (in 
millions)     

LIBOR
  Fixed Rate   

Interest Rate Swap H   Barclays Capital   2011-2014  $ 350.0     3.75% 
Interest Rate Swap I   Deutsche Bank   2011-2014  $ 350.0     3.77% 
Interest Rate Swap J

  UBS   

2013-
2014   $  125.0     2.96% 

Interest Rate Swap K
  UBS   

2013-
2014   $ 125.0     3.05% 

Interest Rate Swap L
  Barclays   

2016-
2019   $ 75.0     3.44%* 

Interest Rate Swap M
  JP Morgan   

2016-
2019   $ 100.0     3.43%* 

Interest Rate Swap N
  Bank of America  

2016-
2019   $ 75.0     3.37%* 

Interest Rate Swap O
  Deutsche Bank   

2016-
2019   $ 75.0     3.19%* 

 

 * include LIBOR floor of 1.00%

In certain circumstances, we and the counterparty are required to provide additional collateral under these swaps. We are exposed to increased interest
expense if a counterparty defaults. Refer to NOTE F and NOTE G of the notes to our condensed consolidated financial statements included in Part I, Item 1 of
this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Exchange Rate Risk

While our net sales and costs are denominated principally in U.S. Dollars, net sales, costs, assets and liabilities are generated in other currencies including
Japanese Yen, Euro, Indian Rupee, Brazilian Real, Chinese Yuan Renminbi, and Canadian Dollar. The expansion of our business outside North America may
further increase the risk that cash flows resulting from these activities may be adversely affected by changes in currency exchange rates. As of September 30,
2013, we hold forward rate contracts for the Japanese Yen, which are intended to hedge either known or forecasted cash flow payments denominated in the
currency. We do not hold financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

Assuming current levels of foreign currency transactions, a 10% increase or decrease in the Japanese Yen, Euro, Indian Rupee, Chinese Yuan Renminbi and
Canadian Dollar would correspondingly change our earnings by an estimated $4 million per year. This includes the partial offset of our hedging contracts
described above. All other exposure to foreign currencies is considered immaterial.

Commodity Price Risk

We are subject to changes in our cost of sales caused by movements in underlying commodity prices. Approximately two-thirds of our cost of sales consists
of purchased components with significant raw material content. A substantial portion of the purchased parts are made of aluminum and steel. The cost of
aluminum parts include an adjustment factor on future purchases for fluctuations in aluminum prices based on accepted industry indices. In addition, a substantial
amount of steel-based contracts also include an index-based component. As our costs change, we are able to pass through a portion of the changes in commodity
prices to certain of our customers according to our LTSAs. We historically have not entered into long-term purchase contracts related to the purchase of aluminum
and steel. We currently hold financial forward contracts that are intended to hedge forecasted aluminum purchases. Based on our forecasted demand for 2013 and
2014, as of September 30, 2013, the hedge contracts cover approximately 25% and 27% of our aluminum requirements, respectively. We do not hold financial
instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

Assuming current levels of commodity purchases, a 10% increase or decrease in the cost of aluminum and steel would correspondingly change our
earnings by approximately $1 million and $4 million per year, respectively. This includes the partial offset of our hedging contracts described above.
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Many of our LTSAs have incorporated a cost-sharing arrangement related to potential future commodity price fluctuations. Our hedging policy is that we
only hedge for our exposure and do not hedge any portion of the customers’ exposure. For purposes of the sensitivity analysis above, the impact of these cost
sharing arrangements have not been included.
  
 

ITEM 4. Controls and Procedures
  
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) or 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”)), as of the end of the period
covered by this report. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognized that any controls and procedures, no matter
how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives. In addition, the design of disclosure controls
and procedures must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints and that management is required to apply its judgment in evaluating the benefits of possible
controls and procedures relative to their costs.

Based on that evaluation, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the
period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q were effective to provide reasonable assurance that information we are required to disclose in reports that
we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC rules and forms, and that
such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, as appropriate, to allow
timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) or 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) during the
period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

  
 
  
Item 1. Legal Proceedings
  

From time to time, we are a party to various legal actions in the normal course of our business, including those related to commercial transactions, product
liability, safety, health, taxes, environmental and other matters. See NOTE N of the notes to the condensed consolidated financial statements included in Part I,
Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.
   
Item 1A. Risk Factors
  

Except as set forth in our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2013, there have been no material changes from our risk factors
as previously reported in Part I, Item 1A of our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K.
  
 

Item 6. Exhibits
  

(a) Exhibits
 

Exhibit
Number  Description

  10.29*  Form of 2011 Equity Incentive Award Plan Stock Option Agreement (filed herewith)

  10.30*  Form of 2011 Equity Incentive Award Plan Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for Non-Employee Directors (filed herewith)

  10.31*  Amended and Restated Non-Employee Director Compensation Policy (filed herewith)

  10.32

 

Amendment No. 8 to the Credit Agreement, dated as of August 26, 2013, among Allison Transmission Holdings, Inc., Allison Transmission, Inc.,
as Borrower, the several banks and other financial institutions or entities from time to time parties thereto as Lenders, Citicorp North America, Inc.,
as Administrative Agent and the other agents and arrangers party thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed August 26, 2013)

  31.1
 

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) as adopted pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith)

  31.2
 

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) as adopted pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith)

  32.1
 

Certification of Periodic Report by Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith)

101.INS+  XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH+  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL+  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF+  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

101.LAB+  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE+  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document
 
* Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement
+ Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, this interactive data file is deemed not filed or part of a registration statement or prospectus for purposes of Sections

11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, is deemed not filed for purposes of section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and otherwise is not subject to
liability under these sections.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
thereunto duly authorized.
 
Date: October 29, 2013   ALLISON TRANSMISSION HOLDINGS, INC.

  By:  /s/ Lawrence E. Dewey
  Name: Lawrence E. Dewey
  Title:  Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: October 29, 2013   By:  /s/ David S. Graziosi
  Name: David S. Graziosi

  

Title:

 

Executive Vice President, Chief
Financial Officer and Treasurer
(Principal Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit 10.29

ALLISON TRANSMISSION HOLDINGS, INC.
2011 EQUITY INCENTIVE AWARD PLAN

STOCK OPTION GRANT NOTICE

Allison Transmission Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation, (the “Company”), pursuant to its 2011 Equity Incentive Award Plan, as amended from time
to time (the “Plan”), hereby grants to the holder listed below (“Participant”), an option to purchase the number of shares of Common Stock (“Stock”) set forth
below (the “Option”). The Option is subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Stock Option Grant Notice (the “Grant Notice”) and the Stock Option
Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Agreement”) and the Plan, which are incorporated herein by reference. Unless otherwise defined herein, the terms
defined in the Plan shall have the same defined meanings in the Grant Notice and the Agreement.
 
Participant:   

Grant Date:   

Exercise Price per Share:   $

Total Exercise Price:   $

Total Number of
Shares Subject to the
Option:               shares

Expiration Date:   

Vesting Schedule:   [To be specified in individual agreements]

Type of Option:   Non-Qualified Stock Option

By his or her signature and the Company’s signature below, Participant agrees to be bound by the terms and conditions of the Plan, the Agreement and the
Grant Notice. Participant has reviewed the Agreement, the Plan and the Grant Notice in their entirety, has had an opportunity to obtain the advice of counsel prior
to executing the Grant Notice and fully understands all provisions of the Grant Notice, the Agreement and the Plan. Participant hereby agrees to accept as
binding, conclusive and final all decisions or interpretations of the Administrator upon any questions arising under the Plan, the Grant Notice or the Agreement.
 
ALLISON TRANSMISSION HOLDINGS, INC.   PARTICIPANT

By:     By:    
Print Name:     Print Name:    
Title:       

   Address:    

      



EXHIBIT A
TO STOCK OPTION GRANT NOTICE

STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT

Pursuant to the Grant Notice to which this Agreement is attached, the Company has granted to Participant an Option under the Plan to purchase the number
of shares of Stock set forth in the Grant Notice.

ARTICLE 1.

GENERAL

1.1 Defined Terms. Capitalized terms not specifically defined herein shall have the meanings specified in the Plan or the Grant Notice.

1.2 Incorporation of Terms of Plan. The Option is subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and the Plan, which is incorporated herein
by reference. In the event of any inconsistency between the Plan and this Agreement, the terms of the Plan shall control.

ARTICLE 2.

GRANT OF OPTION

2.1 Grant of Option. In consideration of Participant’s past and/or continued employment with or service to the Company or a Subsidiary and for other good
and valuable consideration, effective as of the grant date set forth in the Grant Notice (the “Grant Date”), the Company has granted to Participant the Option to
purchase any part or all of an aggregate of the number of shares of Stock set forth in the Grant Notice, upon the terms and conditions set forth in the Grant Notice,
the Plan and this Agreement, subject to adjustments as provided in Section 12.2 of the Plan.

2.2 Exercise Price. The exercise price per share of the shares of Stock subject to the Option (the “Exercise Price”) shall be as set forth in the Grant Notice.

2.3 Consideration to the Company. In consideration of the grant of the Option by the Company, Participant agrees to render faithful and efficient services to
the Company or any Subsidiary. Nothing in the Plan, the Grant Notice or this Agreement shall confer upon Participant any right to continue in the employ or
service of the Company or any Subsidiary or shall interfere with or restrict in any way the rights of the Company and its Subsidiaries, which rights are hereby
expressly reserved, to discharge or terminate the services of Participant at any time for any reason whatsoever, with or without cause, except to the extent
expressly provided otherwise in a written agreement between the Company or a Subsidiary and Participant.

ARTICLE 3.

PERIOD OF EXERCISABILITY

3.1 Commencement of Exercisability.

(a) Subject to Sections 3.2, 3.3, 5.9 and 5.14 hereof, the Option shall become vested and exercisable in such amounts and at such times as are set
forth in the Grant Notice.

(b) No portion of the Option which has not become vested and exercisable at the date of Participant’s Termination of Service shall thereafter become
vested and exercisable, except as may be otherwise provided by the Administrator or as set forth in a written agreement between the Company and
Participant.

3.2 Duration of Exercisability. The installments provided for in the vesting schedule set forth in the Grant Notice are cumulative. Each such installment
which becomes vested and exercisable pursuant to the vesting schedule set forth in the Grant Notice shall remain vested and exercisable until it becomes
unexercisable under Section 3.3 hereof.



3.3 Expiration of Option. The Option may not be exercised to any extent by anyone after the first to occur of the following events:

(a) The expiration date set forth in the Grant Notice;

(b) Except as the Administrator may otherwise approve, in the event of Participant’s Termination of Service other than for Cause or by reason of
Participant’s death, disability or Retirement (as defined below), the expiration of three (3) months from the date of Participant’s Termination of Service;

(c) Except as the Administrator may otherwise approve, the expiration of one (1) year from the date of Participant’s Termination of Service by reason
of Participant’s death or disability;

(d) Except as the Administrator may otherwise approve, (i) if the Participant retires from his position at the Company after attaining age 65, the
expiration of thirty-six (36) months following the Participant’s retirement, or (ii) if the Participant retires from his position at the Company before attaining
age 65 and the Participant has ninety (90) or more points (calculated as a combination of age and years of service with the Company), the expiration of
twenty-four (24) months from the date of the Participant’s retirement (together, “Retirement”); or

(e) Except as the Administrator may otherwise approve, upon Participant’s Termination of Service for Cause.

As used in this Agreement, “Cause” shall mean (a) the Board’s determination that Participant failed to substantially perform his or her duties (other than any such
failure resulting from Participant’s disability); (b) the Board’s determination that Participant failed to carry out, or comply with any lawful and reasonable
directive of the Board or Participant’s immediate supervisor; (c) Participant’s conviction, plea of no contest, plea of nolo contendere, or imposition of
unadjudicated probation for any felony, indictable offense or crime involving moral turpitude; (d) Participant’s unlawful use (including being under the influence)
or possession of illegal drugs on the Company’s (or any of its Subsidiaries’) premises or while performing Participant’s duties and responsibilities; or
(e) Participant’s commission of an act of fraud, embezzlement, misappropriation, misconduct, or breach of fiduciary duty against the Company of any of its
Subsidiaries. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if Participant is a party to a written employment or consulting agreement with the Company (or its Subsidiary), then
“Cause” shall be as such term is defined in the applicable written employment or consulting agreement.

3.4 Tax Withholding. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement:

(a) The Company and its Subsidiaries have the authority to deduct or withhold, or require Participant to remit to the Company or the applicable
Subsidiary, an amount sufficient to satisfy applicable federal, state, local and foreign taxes (including the employee portion of any FICA obligation)
required by law to be withheld with respect to any taxable event arising pursuant to this Agreement. The Company and its Subsidiaries may withhold or the
Participant may make such payment in one or more of the forms specified below:

(i) by cash or check made payable to the Company or the Subsidiary with respect to which the withholding obligation arises;

(ii) by the deduction of such amount from other compensation payable to Participant;

(iii) with respect to any withholding taxes arising in connection with the exercise of the Option, with the consent of the Administrator, by
requesting that the Company withhold a net number of shares of Stock issuable upon the exercise of the Option having a then current Fair Market
Value not exceeding the amount necessary to satisfy the withholding obligation of the Company and its Subsidiaries based on the minimum
applicable statutory withholding rates for federal, state, local and foreign income tax and payroll tax purposes;

(iv) with respect to any withholding taxes arising in connection with the exercise of the Option, with the consent of the Administrator, by
tendering to the Company shares of Stock having a then current Fair Market Value not exceeding the amount necessary to satisfy the withholding
obligation of the Company and its Subsidiaries based on the minimum applicable statutory withholding rates for federal, state, local and foreign
income tax and payroll tax purposes;



(v) with respect to any withholding taxes arising in connection with the exercise of the Option, through the delivery of a notice that Participant
has placed a market sell order with a broker acceptable to the Company with respect to shares of Stock then issuable upon exercise of the Option,
and that the broker has been directed to pay a sufficient portion of the net proceeds of the sale to the Company or the Subsidiary with respect to
which the withholding obligation arises in satisfaction of such withholding taxes; provided that payment of such proceeds is then made to the
Company or the applicable Subsidiary at such time as may be required by the Administrator, but in any event not later than the settlement of such
sale; or

(vi) in any combination of the foregoing.

(b) With respect to any withholding taxes arising in connection with the Option, in the event Participant fails to provide timely payment of all sums
required pursuant to Section 3.4(a), the Company shall have the right and option, but not the obligation, to treat such failure as an election by Participant to
satisfy all or any portion of Participant’s required payment obligation pursuant to Section 3.4(a)(ii) or Section 3.4(a)(iii) above, or any combination of the
foregoing as the Company may determine to be appropriate. The Company shall not be obligated to deliver any certificate representing shares of Stock
issuable with respect to the exercise of the Option to Participant or his or her legal representative unless and until Participant or his or her legal
representative shall have paid or otherwise satisfied in full the amount of all federal, state, local and foreign taxes applicable with respect to the taxable
income of Participant resulting from the exercise of the Option or any other taxable event related to the Option.

(c) In the event any tax withholding obligation arising in connection with the Option will be satisfied under Section 3.4(a)(iii) above, then the
Company may elect to instruct any brokerage firm determined acceptable to the Company for such purpose to sell on Participant’s behalf a whole number
of shares from those shares of Stock that are issuable upon exercise of the Option as the Company determines to be appropriate to generate cash proceeds
sufficient to satisfy the tax withholding obligation and to remit the proceeds of such sale to the Company or the Subsidiary with respect to which the
withholding obligation arises. Participant’s acceptance of this Award constitutes Participant’s instruction and authorization to the Company and such
brokerage firm to complete the transactions described in this Section 3.4(c), including the transactions described in the previous sentence, as applicable.
The Company may refuse to issue any shares of Stock to Participant until the foregoing tax withholding obligations are satisfied.

(d) Participant is ultimately liable and responsible for all taxes owed in connection with the Option, regardless of any action the Company or any
Subsidiary takes with respect to any tax withholding obligations that arise in connection with the Option. Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary makes
any representation or undertaking regarding the treatment of any tax withholding in connection with the awarding, vesting or exercise of the Option or the
subsequent sale of Stock. The Company and the Subsidiaries do not commit and are under no obligation to structure the Option to reduce or eliminate
Participant’s tax liability.

ARTICLE 4.

EXERCISE OF OPTION

4.1 Person Eligible to Exercise. During the lifetime of Participant, only Participant may exercise the Option or any portion thereof. After the death of
Participant, any exercisable portion of the Option may, prior to the time when the Option becomes unexercisable under Section 3.3 hereof, be exercised by
Participant’s personal representative or by any person empowered to do so under the deceased Participant’s will or under the then applicable laws of descent and
distribution.

4.2 Partial Exercise. Subject to Section 5.2, any exercisable portion of the Option or the entire Option, if then wholly exercisable, may be exercised in
whole or in part at any time prior to the time when the Option or portion thereof becomes unexercisable under Section 3.3 hereof.

4.3 Manner of Exercise. Subject to Section 5.7 of the Plan, the Option, or any exercisable portion thereof, may be exercised solely by delivery to the
Secretary of the Company (or any third party administrator or other person or entity designated by the Company), during regular business hours, of all of the
following prior to the time when the Option or such portion thereof becomes unexercisable under Section 3.3 hereof:

(a) An exercise notice in a form specified by the Administrator, stating that the Option or portion thereof is thereby exercised, such notice complying
with all applicable rules established by the Administrator;



(b) The receipt by the Company of full payment for the shares of Stock with respect to which the Option or portion thereof is exercised, in such form
of consideration permitted under Section 4.4 hereof that is acceptable to the Administrator;

(c) The payment of any applicable withholding tax in accordance with Section 3.4;

(d) Any other written representations or documents as may be required in the Administrator’s sole discretion to effect compliance with Applicable
Law; and

(e) In the event the Option or portion thereof shall be exercised pursuant to Section 4.1 hereof by any person or persons other than Participant,
appropriate proof of the right of such person or persons to exercise the Option.

Notwithstanding any of the foregoing, the Administrator shall have the right to specify all conditions of the manner of exercise, which conditions may vary by
country and which may be subject to change from time to time.

4.4 Method of Payment. Payment of the exercise price shall be by any of the following, or a combination thereof, at the election of Participant:

(a) Cash or check;

(b) Unless otherwise determined by the Administrator, surrender of shares of Stock (including, without limitation, shares of Stock otherwise issuable
upon exercise of the Option) held for such period of time as may be required by the Administrator in order to avoid adverse accounting consequences and
having a Fair Market Value on the date of delivery equal to the aggregate exercise price of the Option or exercised portion thereof;

(c) Through the delivery of a notice that Participant has placed a market sell order with a broker acceptable to the Company with respect to shares of
Stock then issuable upon exercise of the Option, and that the broker has been directed to pay a sufficient portion of the net proceeds of the sale to the
Company in satisfaction of the Option exercise price; provided that payment of such proceeds is then made to the Company at such time as may be required
by the Administrator, but in any event not later than the settlement of such sale; or

(d) Any other form of legal consideration acceptable to the Administrator.

4.5 Conditions to Issuance of Stock. The Company shall not be required to issue or deliver any shares of Stock purchased upon the exercise of the Option
or portion thereof prior to fulfillment of all of the following conditions: (A) the admission of such shares of Stock to listing on all stock exchanges on which such
Stock is then listed, (B) the completion of any registration or other qualification of such shares of Stock under any state or federal law or under rulings or
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission or other governmental regulatory body, which the Administrator shall, in its absolute discretion, deem
necessary or advisable, (C) the obtaining of any approval or other clearance from any state or federal governmental agency which the Administrator shall, in its
absolute discretion, determine to be necessary or advisable, (D) the receipt by the Company of full payment for such shares of Stock, which may be in one or
more of the forms of consideration permitted under Section 4.4 hereof, and (E) the receipt of full payment of any applicable withholding tax in accordance with
Section 3.4 by the Company or its Subsidiary with respect to which the applicable withholding obligation arises.

4.6 Rights as Stockholder. Neither Participant nor any person claiming under or through Participant will have any of the rights or privileges of a
stockholder of the Company in respect of any shares of Stock purchasable upon the exercise of any part of the Option unless and until certificates representing
such shares of Stock (which may be in book-entry form) will have been issued and recorded on the records of the Company or its transfer agents or registrars and
delivered to Participant (including through electronic delivery to a brokerage account). No adjustment will be made for a dividend or other right for which the
record date is prior to the date of such issuance, recordation and delivery, except as provided in Section 12.2 of the Plan. Except as otherwise provided herein,
after such issuance, recordation and delivery, Participant will have all the rights of a stockholder of the Company with respect to such shares of Stock, including,
without limitation, the right to receipt of dividends and distributions on such shares.



ARTICLE 5.

OTHER PROVISIONS

5.1 Administration. The Administrator shall have the power to interpret the Plan, the Grant Notice and this Agreement and to adopt such rules for the
administration, interpretation and application of the Plan, the Grant Notice and this Agreement as are consistent therewith and to interpret, amend or revoke any
such rules. All actions taken and all interpretations and determinations made by the Administrator will be final and binding upon Participant, the Company and all
other interested persons. To the extent allowable pursuant to Applicable Law, no member of the Committee or the Board will be personally liable for any action,
determination or interpretation made with respect to the Plan, the Grant Notice or this Agreement.

5.2 Whole Shares. The Option may only be exercised for whole shares of Stock.

5.3 Option Not Transferable. Subject to Section 4.1 hereof, the Option may not be sold, pledged, assigned or transferred in any manner other than by will or
the laws of descent and distribution, unless and until the shares of Stock underlying the Option have been issued, and all restrictions applicable to such shares of
Stock have lapsed. Neither the Option nor any interest or right therein or part thereof shall be liable for the debts, contracts or engagements of Participant or his or
her successors in interest or shall be subject to disposition by transfer, alienation, anticipation, pledge, encumbrance, assignment or any other means whether such
disposition be voluntary or involuntary or by operation of law by judgment, levy, attachment, garnishment or any other legal or equitable proceedings (including
bankruptcy), and any attempted disposition thereof shall be null and void and of no effect, except to the extent that such disposition is permitted by the preceding
sentence.

5.4 Adjustments. The Administrator may accelerate the vesting of all or a portion of the Option in such circumstances as it, in its sole discretion, may
determine. In addition, upon the occurrence of certain events relating to the Stock contemplated by Section 12.2 of the Plan (including, without limitation, an
extraordinary cash dividend on such Stock), the Administrator shall make such adjustments as the Administrator deems appropriate in the number of shares of
Stock subject to the Option, the exercise price of the Option and the kind of securities that may be issued upon exercise of the Option. Participant acknowledges
that the Option is subject to adjustment, modification and termination in certain events as provided in this Agreement and Section 12.2 of the Plan.

5.5 Notices. Any notice to be given under the terms of this Agreement to the Company shall be addressed to the Company in care of the Secretary of the
Company at the Company’s principal office, and any notice to be given to Participant shall be addressed to Participant at Participant’s last address reflected on the
Company’s records. By a notice given pursuant to this Section 5.5, either party may hereafter designate a different address for notices to be given to that party.
Any notice which is required to be given to Participant shall, if Participant is then deceased, be given to the person entitled to exercise the Option pursuant to
Section 4.1 hereof by written notice under this Section 5.5. Any notice shall be deemed duly given when sent via email or when sent by certified mail (return
receipt requested) and deposited (with postage prepaid) in a post office or branch post office regularly maintained by the United States Postal Service.

5.6 Titles. Titles are provided herein for convenience only and are not to serve as a basis for interpretation or construction of this Agreement.

5.7 Governing Law. The laws of the State of Delaware shall govern the interpretation, validity, administration, enforcement and performance of the terms
of this Agreement regardless of the law that might be applied under principles of conflicts of laws.

5.8 Conformity to Securities Laws. Participant acknowledges that the Plan, the Grant Notice and this Agreement are intended to conform to the extent
necessary with all Applicable Laws, including, without limitation, the provisions of the Securities Act and the Exchange Act and any and all regulations and rules
promulgated thereunder by the Securities and Exchange Commission and state securities laws and regulations. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary,
the Plan shall be administered, and the Option is granted and may be exercised, only in such a manner as to conform to Applicable Law. To the extent permitted
by Applicable Law, the Plan and this Agreement shall be deemed amended to the extent necessary to conform to Applicable Law.

5.9 Amendment, Suspension and Termination. To the extent permitted by the Plan, this Agreement may be wholly or partially amended or otherwise
modified, suspended or terminated at any time or from time to time by the Administrator or the Board, provided that, except as may otherwise be provided by the
Plan, no amendment, modification, suspension or termination of this Agreement shall adversely affect the Option in any material way without the prior written
consent of Participant.



5.10 Successors and Assigns. The Company may assign any of its rights under this Agreement to single or multiple assignees, and this Agreement shall
inure to the benefit of the successors and assigns of the Company. Subject to the restrictions on transfer set forth in Section 5.3 and the Plan, this Agreement shall
be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs, legatees, legal representatives, successors and assigns of the parties hereto.

5.11 Limitations Applicable to Section 16 Persons. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan or this Agreement, if Participant is subject to
Section 16 of the Exchange Act, the Plan, the Option, the Grant Notice and this Agreement shall be subject to any additional limitations set forth in any applicable
exemptive rule under Section 16 of the Exchange Act (including any amendment to Rule 16b-3 of the Exchange Act) that are requirements for the application of
such exemptive rule. To the extent permitted by Applicable Law, this Agreement shall be deemed amended to the extent necessary to conform to such applicable
exemptive rule.

5.12 Not a Contract of Employment. Nothing in this Agreement or in the Plan shall confer upon Participant any right to continue to serve as an employee
or other service provider of the Company or any Subsidiary or shall interfere with or restrict in any way the rights of the Company and its Subsidiaries, which
rights are hereby expressly reserved, to discharge or terminate the services of Participant at any time for any reason whatsoever, with or without cause, except to
the extent expressly provided otherwise in a written agreement between the Company or a Subsidiary and Participant.

5.13 Entire Agreement. The Plan, the Grant Notice and this Agreement (including any exhibit hereto) constitute the entire agreement of the parties and
supersede in their entirety all prior undertakings and agreements of the Company and Participant with respect to the subject matter hereof.

5.14 Section 409A. This Award is not intended to constitute “nonqualified deferred compensation” within the meaning of Section 409A of the Code
(together with any Department of Treasury regulations and other interpretive guidance issued thereunder, including without limitation any such regulations or
other guidance that may be issued after the date hereof, “Section 409A”). However, notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan, the Grant Notice or this
Agreement, if at any time the Administrator determines that this Award (or any portion thereof) may be subject to Section 409A, the Administrator shall have the
right in its sole discretion (without any obligation to do so or to indemnify Participant or any other person for failure to do so) to adopt such amendments to the
Plan, the Grant Notice or this Agreement, or adopt other policies and procedures (including amendments, policies and procedures with retroactive effect), or take
any other actions, as the Administrator determines are necessary or appropriate for this Award either to be exempt from the application of Section 409A or to
comply with the requirements of Section 409A.

5.15 Agreement Severable. In the event that any provision of the Grant Notice or this Agreement is held invalid or unenforceable, such provision will be
severable from, and such invalidity or unenforceability will not be construed to have any effect on, the remaining provisions of the Grant Notice or this
Agreement.

5.16 Limitation on Participant’s Rights. Participation in the Plan confers no rights or interests other than as herein provided. This Agreement creates only a
contractual obligation on the part of the Company as to amounts payable and shall not be construed as creating a trust. Neither the Plan nor any underlying
program, in and of itself, has any assets. Participant shall have only the rights of a general unsecured creditor of the Company with respect to amounts credited
and benefits payable, if any, with respect to the Option, and rights no greater than the right to receive the Stock as a general unsecured creditor with respect to
options, as and when exercised pursuant to the terms hereof.

5.17 Counterparts. The Grant Notice may be executed in one or more counterparts, including by way of any electronic signature, subject to Applicable
Law, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which together shall constitute one instrument.

5.18 Broker-Assisted Sales. In the event of any broker-assisted sale of shares of Stock in connection with the payment of withholding taxes as provided in
Section 3.4(a)(v) or Section 3.4(c) or the payment of the exercise price as provided in Section 4.4(c): (A) any shares of Stock to be sold through a broker-assisted
sale will be sold on the day the tax withholding obligation or exercise of the Option, as applicable, occurs or arises, or as soon thereafter as practicable; (B) such
shares of Stock may be sold as part of a block trade with other participants in the Plan in which all participants receive an average price; (C) Participant will be
responsible for all broker’s fees and other costs of sale, and Participant agrees to indemnify and hold the Company harmless from any losses, costs, damages, or



expenses relating to any such sale; (D) to the extent the proceeds of such sale exceed the applicable tax withholding obligation or exercise price, the Company
agrees to pay such excess in cash to Participant as soon as reasonably practicable; (E) Participant acknowledges that the Company or its designee is under no
obligation to arrange for such sale at any particular price, and that the proceeds of any such sale may not be sufficient to satisfy the applicable tax withholding
obligation or exercise price; and (F) in the event the proceeds of such sale are insufficient to satisfy the applicable tax withholding obligation, Participant agrees
to pay immediately upon demand to the Company or its Subsidiary with respect to which the withholding obligation arises, an amount sufficient to satisfy any
remaining portion of the Company’s or the applicable Subsidiary’s withholding obligation.

*   *   *



Exhibit 10.30

ALLISON TRANSMISSION HOLDINGS, INC.
2011 INCENTIVE AWARD PLAN

RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT GRANT NOTICE

Allison Transmission Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), pursuant to its 2011 Equity Incentive Award Plan, as amended from time to
time (the “Plan”), hereby grants to the holder listed below (“Participant”) the number of Restricted Stock Units (the “RSUs”) set forth below. The RSUs are
subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Restricted Stock Unit Grant Notice (the “Grant Notice”) and the Restricted Stock Unit Agreement attached
hereto as Exhibit A (the “Agreement”) and the Plan, which are incorporated herein by reference. Unless otherwise defined herein, the terms defined in the Plan
shall have the same defined meanings in the Grant Notice and the Agreement.
 
Participant:   

Grant Date:   

Number of RSUs:   

Type of Shares Issuable:   Common Stock of Allison Transmission Holdings, Inc.

Vesting Schedule:

  

The RSUs will vest on the first to occur of (A) date of the Company’s next regular annual shareholders meeting in the year
following the year of grant, (B) the date of the Non-Employee Director’s Separation from Service, or (C) the date of a
Change in Control, in each case as follows:
 

the number of Restricted Stock Units that vest is equal to the number of Restricted Stock Units granted multiplied by
the fraction of Board meetings the Non-Employee Director attended in the applicable year, where the numerator is
the number of meetings attended and the denominator is the number of meetings held, provided that (x) if vesting
occurs as a result of a Change in Control or the Non-Employee Director’s Separation from Service due to death or
Disability, 100% of the Restricted Stock Units shall vest and (y) if vesting occurs as a result of a Separation from
Service other than due to death or Disability, the number of Restricted Stock Units that vest shall be determined by
the Company in good faith based on the number of meetings held and attended by the Non-Employee Director prior
to such Separation from Service and the number of remaining meetings expected to be held during the applicable
year.

 

Any Restricted Stock Units that do not vest shall be immediately forfeited as of the applicable vesting date.

By his or her signature, and the Company’s signature below, Participant agrees to be bound by the terms and conditions of the Plan, the Agreement and the
Grant Notice. Participant has reviewed the Agreement, the Plan and the Grant Notice in their entirety, has had an opportunity to obtain the advice of counsel prior
to executing the Grant Notice and fully understands all provisions of the Grant Notice, the Agreement and the Plan. Participant hereby agrees to accept as
binding, conclusive and final all decisions or interpretations of the Administrator upon any questions arising under the Plan, the Grant Notice or the Agreement.



ALLISON TRANSMISSION HOLDINGS, INC.     PARTICIPANT

By:       By:    
Print Name:       Print Name:    
Title:         

     Address:    
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EXHIBIT A
TO RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT GRANT NOTICE

RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AGREEMENT

Pursuant to the Grant Notice to which this Agreement is attached, the Company has granted to Participant the number of RSUs set forth in the Grant
Notice.

ARTICLE I.

GENERAL

1.1 Defined Terms. Capitalized terms not specifically defined herein shall have the meanings specified in the Plan or the Grant Notice.

1.2 Incorporation of Terms of Plan. The RSUs and the shares of Common Stock (“Stock”) issued to Participant hereunder (“Shares”) are subject to the
terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and the Plan, which is incorporated herein by reference. In the event of any inconsistency between the Plan and
this Agreement, the terms of the Plan shall control.

ARTICLE II.

AWARD OF RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS AND DIVIDEND EQUIVALENTS

2.1 Award of RSUs and Dividend Equivalents.

(a) In consideration of Participant’s past and/or continued employment with or service to the Company or a Subsidiary and for other good and
valuable consideration, effective as of the grant date set forth in the Grant Notice (the “Grant Date”), the Company has granted to Participant the number of RSUs
set forth in the Grant Notice, upon the terms and conditions set forth in the Grant Notice, the Plan and this Agreement, subject to adjustments as provided in
Section 12.2 of the Plan. Each RSU represents the right to receive one Share or, at the option of the Company, an amount of cash as set forth in Section 2.3(b), in
either case, at the times and subject to the conditions set forth herein. However, unless and until the RSUs have vested, Participant will have no right to the
payment of any Shares subject thereto. Prior to the actual delivery of any Shares, the RSUs will represent an unsecured obligation of the Company, payable only
from the general assets of the Company.

(b) The Company hereby grants to Participant an Award of Dividend Equivalents with respect to each RSU granted pursuant to the Grant Notice for
all ordinary cash dividends which are paid to all or substantially all holders of the outstanding shares of Stock between the Grant Date and the date when the
applicable RSU is distributed or paid to Participant or is forfeited or expires. The Dividend Equivalents for each RSU shall be equal to the amount of cash which
is paid as a dividend on one share of Stock. All such Dividend Equivalents shall be credited to Participant and be deemed to be reinvested in additional RSUs as
of the date of payment of any such dividend based on the Fair Market Value of a share of Stock on such date. Each additional RSU which results from such
deemed reinvestment of Dividend Equivalents granted hereunder shall be subject to the same vesting, distribution or payment, adjustment and other provisions
which apply to the underlying RSU to which such additional RSU relates.



2.2 Vesting of RSUs and Dividend Equivalents.

(a) Subject to Participant’s continued employment with or service to the Company or a Subsidiary on each applicable vesting date and subject to the
terms of this Agreement, the RSUs shall vest in such amounts and at such times as are set forth in the Grant Notice. Each additional RSU which results from
deemed reinvestments of Dividend Equivalents pursuant to Section 2.1(b) hereof shall vest whenever the underlying RSU to which such additional RSU relates
vests.

(b) In the event Participant incurs a Termination of Service, except as may be otherwise provided by the Administrator or as set forth in a written
agreement between Participant and the Company, Participant shall immediately forfeit any and all RSUs and Dividend Equivalents granted under this Agreement
which have not vested or do not vest on or prior to the date on which such Termination of Service occurs, and Participant’s rights in any such RSUs and Dividend
Equivalents which are not so vested shall lapse and expire.

2.3 Distribution or Payment of RSUs.

(a) Participant’s RSUs shall be distributed in Shares (either in book-entry form or otherwise) or, at the option of the Company, paid in an amount of
cash as set forth in Section 2.3(b), in either case, as follows:

(i) Subject to subsection (ii) below, Participant’s RSUs shall be distributed or paid in the calendar year following the calendar year in which
the Grant Date occurs (the “Payment Year”). More specifically, the RSUs shall be distributed or paid within 30 days after the date of the Company’s regular
annual shareholders meeting occurring in the Payment Year and in all events prior to December 31 of the Payment Year.

(ii) If a Change in Control or the Participant’s Separation from Service occurs prior to the date the RSUs would be distributed or paid
pursuant to subsection (i) above, the RSUs shall be distributed or paid as soon as practicable and in all events within 30 days after the first to occur of a Change in
Control or the Participant’s Separation from Service.

For purposes of this Agreement, (i) “Grant Date” shall be the date identified in the Grant Notice above and (ii) the terms “Change in Control” and “Separation
from Service” shall have meanings assigned to them in the Company’s Director Deferred Compensation Plan.

(b) In the event that the Company elects to make payment of Participant’s RSUs in cash, the amount of cash payable with respect to each RSU shall
be equal to the Fair Market Value of a Share on the day immediately preceding the applicable distribution or payment date set forth in Section 2.3(a). All
distributions made in Shares shall be made by the Company in the form of whole Shares, and any fractional share shall be distributed in cash in an amount equal
to the value of such fractional share determined based on the Fair Market Value as of the date immediately preceding the date of such distribution.

(c) The foregoing provisions of this Section 2.3 shall be subject to any valid deferral election made in accordance with the terms of the Allison
Transmission Holdings, Inc. Non-Employee Director Compensation Policy and/or the Allison Transmission Holdings, Inc. Non-Employee Director Deferred
Compensation Plan or any successor plans and/or policies.
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2.4 Conditions to Issuance of Certificates. The Company shall not be required to issue or deliver any certificate or certificates for any Shares prior to the
fulfillment of all of the following conditions: (A) the admission of the Shares to listing on all stock exchanges on which such Shares are then listed, (B) the
completion of any registration or other qualification of the Shares under any state or federal law or under rulings or regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission or other governmental regulatory body, which the Administrator shall, in its absolute discretion, deem necessary or advisable, and (C) the obtaining
of any approval or other clearance from any state or federal governmental agency that the Administrator shall, in its absolute discretion, determine to be necessary
or advisable.

2.5 Tax Withholding. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement:

(a) The Company and its Subsidiaries have the authority to deduct or withhold, or require Participant to remit to the Company or the applicable
Subsidiary, an amount sufficient to satisfy applicable federal, state, local and foreign taxes (including the employee portion of any FICA obligation) required by
law to be withheld with respect to any taxable event arising pursuant to this Agreement. The Company and its Subsidiaries may withhold or the Participant may
make such payment in one or more of the forms specified below:

(i) by cash or check made payable to the Company or the Subsidiary with respect to which the withholding obligation arises;

(ii) by the deduction of such amount from other compensation payable to Participant;

(iii) with respect to any withholding taxes arising in connection with the distribution of the RSUs, with the consent of the Administrator, by
requesting that the Company and its Subsidiaries withhold a net number of vested shares of Stock otherwise issuable pursuant to the RSUs having a then current
Fair Market Value not exceeding the amount necessary to satisfy the withholding obligation of the Company and its Subsidiaries based on the minimum
applicable statutory withholding rates for federal, state, local and foreign income tax and payroll tax purposes;

(iv) with respect to any withholding taxes arising in connection with the distribution of the RSUs, with the consent of the Administrator, by
tendering to the Company vested shares of Stock having a then current Fair Market Value not exceeding the amount necessary to satisfy the withholding
obligation of the Company and its Subsidiaries based on the minimum applicable statutory withholding rates for federal, state, local and foreign income tax and
payroll tax purposes;

(v) with respect to any withholding taxes arising in connection with the distribution of the RSUs, through the delivery of a notice that
Participant has placed a market sell order with a broker acceptable to the Company with respect to shares of Stock then issuable to Participant pursuant to the
RSUs, and that the broker has been directed to pay a sufficient portion of the net proceeds of the sale to the Company or the Subsidiary with respect to which the
withholding obligation arises in satisfaction of such withholding taxes; provided that payment of such proceeds is then made to the Company or the applicable
Subsidiary at such time as may be required by the Administrator, but in any event not later than the settlement of such sale; or

(vi) in any combination of the foregoing.

(b) With respect to any withholding taxes arising in connection with the RSUs, in the event Participant fails to provide timely payment of all sums
required pursuant to Section 2.5(a), the Company shall have the right and option, but not the obligation, to treat such failure as an election by Participant to satisfy
all or any portion of Participant’s required payment obligation pursuant to
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Section 2.5(a)(ii) or Section 2.5(a)(iii) above, or any combination of the foregoing as the Company may determine to be appropriate. The Company shall not be
obligated to deliver any certificate representing shares of Stock issuable with respect to the RSUs to Participant or his or her legal representative unless and until
Participant or his or her legal representative shall have paid or otherwise satisfied in full the amount of all federal, state, local and foreign taxes applicable with
respect to the taxable income of Participant resulting from the vesting or settlement of the RSUs or any other taxable event related to the RSUs.

(c) In the event any tax withholding obligation arising in connection with the RSUs will be satisfied under Section 2.5(a)(iii), then the Company may
elect to instruct any brokerage firm determined acceptable to the Company for such purpose to sell on Participant’s behalf a whole number of shares from those
shares of Stock then issuable to Participant pursuant to the RSUs as the Company determines to be appropriate to generate cash proceeds sufficient to satisfy the
tax withholding obligation and to remit the proceeds of such sale to the Company or the Subsidiary with respect to which the withholding obligation arises.
Participant’s acceptance of this Award constitutes Participant’s instruction and authorization to the Company and such brokerage firm to complete the transactions
described in this Section 2.5(c), including the transactions described in the previous sentence, as applicable. The Company may refuse to issue any shares of
Stock in settlement of the RSUs to Participant until the foregoing tax withholding obligations are satisfied, provided that no payment shall be delayed under this
Section 2.5(c) if such delay will result in a violation of Section 409A of the Code.

(d) Participant is ultimately liable and responsible for all taxes owed in connection with the RSUs, regardless of any action the Company or any
Subsidiary takes with respect to any tax withholding obligations that arise in connection with the RSUs. Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary makes any
representation or undertaking regarding the treatment of any tax withholding in connection with the awarding, vesting or payment of the RSUs or the subsequent
sale of Shares. The Company and the Subsidiaries do not commit and are under no obligation to structure the RSUs to reduce or eliminate Participant’s tax
liability.

2.6 Rights as Stockholder. Neither Participant nor any person claiming under or through Participant will have any of the rights or privileges of a
stockholder of the Company in respect of any Shares deliverable hereunder unless and until certificates representing such Shares (which may be in book-entry
form) will have been issued and recorded on the records of the Company or its transfer agents or registrars, and delivered to Participant (including through
electronic delivery to a brokerage account). Except as otherwise provided herein, after such issuance, recordation and delivery, Participant will have all the rights
of a stockholder of the Company with respect to such Shares, including, without limitation, the right to receipt of dividends and distributions on such Shares.

ARTICLE III.

OTHER PROVISIONS

3.1 Administration. The Administrator shall have the power to interpret the Plan, the Grant Notice and this Agreement and to adopt such rules for the
administration, interpretation and application of the Plan, the Grant Notice and this Agreement as are consistent therewith and to interpret, amend or revoke any
such rules. All actions taken and all interpretations and determinations made by the Administrator will be final and binding upon Participant, the Company and all
other interested persons. To the extent allowable pursuant to Applicable Law, no member of the Committee or the Board will be personally liable for any action,
determination or interpretation made with respect to the Plan, the Grant Notice or this Agreement.
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3.2 RSUs Not Transferable. The RSUs may not be sold, pledged, assigned or transferred in any manner other than by will or the laws of descent and
distribution, unless and until the Shares underlying the RSUs have been issued, and all restrictions applicable to such Shares have lapsed. No RSUs or any interest
or right therein or part thereof shall be liable for the debts, contracts or engagements of Participant or his or her successors in interest or shall be subject to
disposition by transfer, alienation, anticipation, pledge, encumbrance, assignment or any other means whether such disposition be voluntary or involuntary or by
operation of law by judgment, levy, attachment, garnishment or any other legal or equitable proceedings (including bankruptcy), and any attempted disposition
thereof shall be null and void and of no effect, except to the extent that such disposition is permitted by the preceding sentence.

3.3 Adjustments. The Administrator may accelerate the vesting of all or a portion of the RSUs in such circumstances as it, in its sole discretion, may
determine. Participant acknowledges that the RSUs and the Shares subject to the RSUs are subject to adjustment, modification and termination in certain events
as provided in this Agreement and Section 12.2 of the Plan.

3.4 Notices. Any notice to be given under the terms of this Agreement to the Company shall be addressed to the Company in care of the Secretary of the
Company at the Company’s principal office, and any notice to be given to Participant shall be addressed to Participant at Participant’s last address reflected on the
Company’s records. By a notice given pursuant to this Section 3.4, either party may hereafter designate a different address for notices to be given to that party.
Any notice shall be deemed duly given when sent via email or when sent by certified mail (return receipt requested) and deposited (with postage prepaid) in a
post office or branch post office regularly maintained by the United States Postal Service.

3.5 Titles. Titles are provided herein for convenience only and are not to serve as a basis for interpretation or construction of this Agreement.

3.6 Governing Law. The laws of the State of Delaware shall govern the interpretation, validity, administration, enforcement and performance of the terms
of this Agreement regardless of the law that might be applied under principles of conflicts of laws.

3.7 Conformity to Securities Laws. Participant acknowledges that the Plan, the Grant Notice and this Agreement are intended to conform to the extent
necessary with all Applicable Laws, including, without limitation, the provisions of the Securities Act and the Exchange Act, and any and all regulations and rules
promulgated thereunder by the Securities and Exchange Commission, and state securities laws and regulations. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary,
the Plan shall be administered, and the RSUs are granted, only in such a manner as to conform to Applicable Law. To the extent permitted by Applicable Law, the
Plan and this Agreement shall be deemed amended to the extent necessary to conform to Applicable Law.

3.8 Amendment, Suspension and Termination. To the extent permitted by the Plan, this Agreement may be wholly or partially amended or otherwise
modified, suspended or terminated at any time or from time to time by the Administrator or the Board, provided that, except as may otherwise be provided by the
Plan, no amendment, modification, suspension or termination of this Agreement shall adversely affect the RSUs in any material way without the prior written
consent of Participant.

3.9 Successors and Assigns. The Company may assign any of its rights under this Agreement to single or multiple assignees, and this Agreement shall
inure to the benefit of the successors and assigns of the Company. Subject to the restrictions on transfer set forth in Section 3.2 and the Plan, this Agreement shall
be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs, legatees, legal representatives, successors and assigns of the parties hereto.
 

A-5



3.10 Limitations Applicable to Section 16 Persons. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan or this Agreement, if Participant is subject to
Section 16 of the Exchange Act, the Plan, the RSUs (including RSUs which result from the deemed reinvestment of Dividend Equivalents), the Dividend
Equivalents, the Grant Notice and this Agreement shall be subject to any additional limitations set forth in any applicable exemptive rule under Section 16 of the
Exchange Act (including any amendment to Rule 16b-3 of the Exchange Act) that are requirements for the application of such exemptive rule. To the extent
permitted by Applicable Law, this Agreement shall be deemed amended to the extent necessary to conform to such applicable exemptive rule.

3.11 Not a Contract of Employment. Nothing in this Agreement or in the Plan shall confer upon Participant any right to continue to serve as an employee or
other service provider of the Company or any Subsidiary or shall interfere with or restrict in any way the rights of the Company and its Subsidiaries, which rights
are hereby expressly reserved, to discharge or terminate the services of Participant at any time for any reason whatsoever, with or without cause, except to the
extent expressly provided otherwise in a written agreement between the Company or a Subsidiary and Participant.

3.12 Entire Agreement. The Plan, the Grant Notice and this Agreement (including any exhibit hereto) constitute the entire agreement of the parties and
supersede in their entirety all prior undertakings and agreements of the Company and Participant with respect to the subject matter hereof.

3.13 Section 409A. The intent of the parties is that the payments and benefits under this Agreement comply with or be exempt from Section 409A of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the regulations and guidance promulgated thereunder (collectively, “Section 409A”) and, accordingly, to the
maximum extent permitted, this Agreement shall be interpreted to be in compliance therewith. If at any time the Administrator determines that this Award (or any
portion thereof) may result in adverse tax consequences as a result of Section 409A, the Administrator shall have the right in its sole discretion (without any
obligation to do so or to indemnify Participant or any other person for failure to do so) to adopt such amendments to the Plan, the Grant Notice or this Agreement,
or adopt other policies and procedures (including amendments, policies and procedures with retroactive effect), or take any other actions, as the Administrator
determines are necessary or appropriate for this Award either to be exempt from the application of Section 409A or to comply with the requirements of
Section 409A. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, if the Participant is deemed by the Company at the time of Participant’s Separation
from Service to be a “specified employee” for purposes of Section 409A, to the extent delayed payment or distribution of the RSUs is required in order to avoid a
prohibited distribution under Section 409A, such payment or distribution shall not be made prior to the earlier of (a) the expiration of the six-month period
measured from the date of Participant’s Separation from Service or (b) the date of Participant’s death. Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreement or the
Plan to the contrary, the time of distribution of the RSUs under this Agreement may not be changed except as may be permitted by the Administrator in
accordance with Section 409A of the Code and the applicable Treasury Regulations promulgated thereunder.

3.14 Agreement Severable. In the event that any provision of the Grant Notice or this Agreement is held invalid or unenforceable, such provision will be
severable from, and such invalidity or unenforceability will not be construed to have any effect on, the remaining provisions of the Grant Notice or this
Agreement.

3.15 Limitation on Participant’s Rights. Participation in the Plan confers no rights or interests other than as herein provided. This Agreement creates only a
contractual obligation on the part of the Company as to amounts payable and shall not be construed as creating a trust. Neither the Plan nor any underlying
program, in and of itself, has any assets. Participant shall have only the rights of a general unsecured creditor of the Company with respect to amounts credited
and benefits payable, if any, with respect to the RSUs and Dividend Equivalents.
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3.16 Counterparts. The Grant Notice may be executed in one or more counterparts, including by way of any electronic signature, subject to Applicable
Law, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which together shall constitute one instrument.

3.17 Broker-Assisted Sales. In the event of any broker-assisted sale of shares of Stock in connection with the payment of withholding taxes as provided in
Section 2.5(a)(iii) or Section 2.5(a)(v): (A) any shares of Stock to be sold through a broker-assisted sale will be sold on the day the tax withholding obligation
arises or as soon thereafter as practicable; (B) such shares of Stock may be sold as part of a block trade with other participants in the Plan in which all participants
receive an average price; (C) Participant will be responsible for all broker’s fees and other costs of sale, and Participant agrees to indemnify and hold the
Company harmless from any losses, costs, damages, or expenses relating to any such sale; (D) to the extent the proceeds of such sale exceed the applicable tax
withholding obligation, the Company agrees to pay such excess in cash to Participant as soon as reasonably practicable; (E) Participant acknowledges that the
Company or its designee is under no obligation to arrange for such sale at any particular price, and that the proceeds of any such sale may not be sufficient to
satisfy the applicable tax withholding obligation; and (F) in the event the proceeds of such sale are insufficient to satisfy the applicable tax withholding obligation,
Participant agrees to pay immediately upon demand to the Company or its Subsidiary with respect to which the withholding obligation arises an amount in cash
sufficient to satisfy any remaining portion of the Company’s or the applicable Subsidiary’s withholding obligation.

*            *             *
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Exhibit 10.31

ALLISON TRANSMISSION HOLDINGS, INC.

Amended and Restated
Non-Employee Director Compensation Policy

1. General. This Amended and Restated Non-Employee Director Compensation Policy (the “Policy”) as set forth herein, amends and restates that certain
Non-Employee Director Compensation Policy, previously adopted by the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Allison Transmission Holdings, Inc. (the
“Company”). Capitalized but undefined terms used herein shall have the meanings provided for in the Allison Transmission Holdings, Inc. 2011 Equity Incentive
Award Plan (the “Plan”). Notwithstanding any provision of this Policy to the contrary, other than Thomas Rabaut (beginning as of the date of the Company’s
2014 annual shareholders meeting), no member of the Board who is a representative of TC Group, L.L.C. or Onex Corporation (as determined by the Board) shall
be eligible to receive any compensation hereunder unless or until otherwise determined by the Board.

2. Annual Retainer and Other Fees. Each member of the Board who is not or has not been employed by the Company or one of its subsidiaries (a “Non-
Employee Director”) shall be entitled to an annual retainer and other fee(s) as follows:

(i) The annual retainer fee for service on the Board shall be $95,000 (such amount, the “Annual Retainer”), with $75,000 of the Annual Retainer
payable at the Non-Employee Director’s election either 100% in fully vested Common Stock granted under the Plan (valued based on the Fair Market Value of
the Common Stock on the date of grant), or 50% in fully vested Common Stock granted under the Plan and 50% in cash (if no election is made, the Annual
Retainer will be paid 50% in Common Stock and 50% in cash), and with $20,000 of the Annual Retainer payable 100% in fully vested Common Stock granted
under the Plan (valued based on the Fair Market Value of the Common Stock on the date of grant);

(ii) The annual retainer fee for service as Chair of the Audit Committee shall be an additional $10,000, payable in cash (the “Audit Committee Fee”);
and

(iii) The annual retainer fee for service as an Outside Director on the Government Security Committee shall be an additional $10,000, payable in
cash (the “Government Security Committee Fee” and together with the Audit Committee Fee, the “Other Fees”).

3. Timing of Payment of Annual Retainer. The Annual Retainer and Other Fees payable hereunder are intended to cover service from one regular annual
shareholders meeting to the next and, unless a deferral election is made as provided below, shall be paid annually in advance on the next business day following
the date of the Company’s annual shareholders meeting, beginning with the annual shareholders meeting for fiscal year 2013, without any requirement of
additional Board action in connection therewith. The Annual Retainer and Other Fees shall be subject to the Non-Employee Director’s continued service on the
Board on each applicable payment date.



4. Meeting Fees. Each Non-Employee Director shall be entitled to annual meeting fees with the amount determined based on the number of Board meetings
the Non-Employee Director attends during the applicable year, up to a maximum of $75,000 a year (such amount, the “Meeting Fees”). Meeting Fees are payable
at the Non-Employee Director’s election either 100% in Restricted Stock Units granted under the Plan (with the number of shares subject to the Restricted Stock
Units based on the Fair Market Value of Common Stock on the date of grant), or 50% in Restricted Stock Units granted under the Plan and 50% in cash. Such
election must be made no later than December 31 of the year prior to the year of the applicable shareholders meeting when such Restricted Stock Units would be
granted or such cash paid. If no such election is made, the Meeting Fees will be paid 50% in Restricted Stock Units and 50% in cash.

5. Timing of Payment of Meeting Fees.

(i) Restricted Stock Units are granted as of the next business day after the date of the Company’s annual shareholders meeting, without any
requirement of additional Board action in connection therewith, and will vest on the first to occur of (A) date of the Company’s next regular annual shareholders
meeting in the year following the year of grant (the “Vesting Date”), (B) the date of the Non-Employee Director’s Separation from Service, or (C) the date of a
Change in Control, in each case as follows: the number of Restricted Stock Units that vest is equal to the number of Restricted Stock Units granted multiplied by
the fraction of Board meetings the Non-Employee Director attended in the applicable year, where the numerator is the number of meetings attended and the
denominator is the number of meetings held, provided that (x) if vesting occurs as a result of a Change in Control or the Non-Employee Director’s Separation
from Service due to death or Disability, 100% of the Restricted Stock Units shall vest and (y) if vesting occurs as a result of a Separation from Service other than
due to death or Disability, the number of Restricted Stock Units that vest shall be determined by the Company in good faith based on the number of meetings held
and attended by the Non-Employee Director prior to such Separation from Service and the number of remaining meetings expected to be held during the
applicable year. Any Restricted Stock Units that do not vest shall be immediately forfeited as of the applicable vesting date. The Restricted Stock Units shall be
granted pursuant and subject to the terms set forth in a written agreement in a form to be approved by the Board and duly executed by an executive officer of the
Company. Unless a deferral election is made as provided below, the Restricted Stock Units will be distributed in actual shares of Common Stock, or, at the
Company’s election, cash, in either case promptly (within 30 days) upon vesting.

(ii) Any cash paid in connection with the Meeting Fees will be paid in a single lump sum on the next business day after the date of the Company’s
annual shareholders meeting. However, if the Non-Employee Director fails to attend one or more Board meetings during the applicable year, a pro-rated portion
of the Meeting Fees may be subject to clawback or recoupment, as determined by the Board.

6. Deferral Elections. A Non-Employee Director may elect to receive deferred stock units (“Deferred Stock”) in lieu of (i) some or all of the fully vested
stock awards constituting his or her Annual Retainer, (ii) all of the cash constituting his or her Other Fees and (iii) some or all of the Restricted Stock Units
constituting his or her Meeting Fees. Any such Deferred Stock that relates to a Non-Employee Director’s Meeting Fees shall be subject to the same vesting



provisions as described in Section 5(i) above and will be immediately forfeited on the applicable Vesting Date to the extent the Deferred Stock does not vest in
accordance with such provisions. If the Non-Employee Director elects to receive Deferred Stock, the units will be credited to a bookkeeping account under the
Company’s Non-Employee Director Deferred Compensation Plan, where each unit will be equivalent in value to one share of Common Stock, and the units will
be distributed in actual shares of Common Stock, or at the Company’s election, cash, at the earlier of the Non-Employee Director’s Separation from Service on
the Board or a Change in Control, as described more fully in and in each case subject to the terms and conditions of the Company’s Non-Employee Director
Deferred Compensation Plan (the “Director Deferred Compensation Plan”). All deferral elections must be made in accordance with and are subject to the terms
and conditions of the Director Deferred Compensation Plan. As used in this paragraph and in paragraph 5(i), the terms “Separation from Service” and “Change in
Control” shall have meanings assigned to them in the Director Deferred Compensation Plan.

7. Directors Commencing Service After the Annual Shareholders Meeting. If a Non-Employee Director commences service on the Board after the date of
the Company’s regular annual shareholders meeting, on the date of such Non-Employee’s commencement of service on the Board the Non-Employee Director
will receive a pro-rated portion the Annual Retainer and Other Fees, as applicable, and the Meeting Fees (based on the numbers of whole months elapsed since
the most recent regular annual shareholders meeting), provided, however, that the Meeting Fees for the Non-Employee Director’s first partial year of service shall
be paid 100% in cash, unless otherwise determined by the Board and subject to the final sentence of Section 5(ii) above.

8. Effect of Other Plan Provisions. All of the provisions of the Plan shall apply to the Awards granted automatically pursuant to this Policy, except to the
extent such provisions are inconsistent with this Policy.

9. Policy Subject to Amendment, Modification and Termination. This Policy may be amended, modified or terminated by the Board in the future at its sole
discretion. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Board hereby expressly reserves the authority to terminate this Policy during any year up and until
the election of directors at a given annual meeting of stockholders.

*     *     *     *     *



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE

SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Lawrence E. Dewey, certify that:
 

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Allison Transmission Holdings, Inc.;
 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

 

 
a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure

that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 

 b) [not applicable]
 

 
c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness

of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 

 
d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal

quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

 

 
a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely

to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 

 
b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over

financial reporting.
 
Dated: October 29, 2013

/s/ Lawrence E. Dewey
Name:  Lawrence E. Dewey
Title:   Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
            (Principal Executive Officer)



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE

SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, David S. Graziosi, certify that:
 

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Allison Transmission Holdings, Inc.;
 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

 

 
a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure

that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 

 b) [not applicable]
 

 
c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness

of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 

 
d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal

quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

 

 
a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely

to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 

 
b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over

financial reporting.
 
Dated: October 29, 2013

/s/ David S. Graziosi
Name:  David S. Graziosi
Title:    Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
            (Principal Financial Officer)



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Allison Transmission Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the quarter ending September 30, 2013
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), we, Lawrence E. Dewey, Chairman, President and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, and David S. Graziosi, Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §
1350 as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
 

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
 

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 
Dated: October 29, 2013

/s/ Lawrence E. Dewey
Lawrence E. Dewey
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Dated: October 29, 2013

/s/ David S. Graziosi
David S. Graziosi
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
(Principal Financial Officer)


